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IMPORTANT  NOTICE  REGARDING  ACCEPTANCE  OF  NOTICES
FOR  PUBLICATION  IN  THE  WEEKLY  “GAZETTE”

ATTENTION is drawn to the Notification appearing in the 1st week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance
of Notices for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of
publication. All Government Departments, Corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times
of applications in respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared
by giving adequate time both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those
interested in the contents of such notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect
of corrections pertaining to notification will not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e.
notices for publication in the weekly Gazette of 14th December, 2012 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 30th
November, 2012.

B. K. S. RAVINDRA,
Acting Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing,
Colombo 08,
June 23, 2012.

AA

N. B :-  Part IV (A) of the Gazette No. 1,785 of 16.11.2012 was not published.

Note .— (i) Code of Criminal Procedure (Special Provisions) Bill is published as a Supplement to the Part II of the Gazette of the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of September 21, 2012.

 (ii) Piyasena Gamage Foundation (Incorporation) Bill is published as a supplement to the Part II of the Gazette of the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka of September 28, 2012
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No.  942 of 2012

I, Rauff Hakeem, Minister of Justice, by virtue of powers vested me
by Section 45(2) of the Judicial Act, No. 2 of 1978 do hereby appoint
the following Chairman and members of the panels of Mediators as
Justices of the Peace.

01. Mr. E. M. W. SAMARAKOON BANDA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island while being the Chairman of the panel
of Mediators for No. 124-Hasalaka;

02. Mr. WICKRAMASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE RANASINGHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Badulla while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 124-
Hasalaka;

03. Mr. YAPA MUDIYANSELAGE RAMBANDA RANASINGHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Badulla while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for  No. 124-
Hasalaka;

04. Mr. DASANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE HEENBANDA RANASINGHE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Badulla
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No.
124-Hasalaka;

05. Mr. ABEYSINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE WIJERATHNA SUNNY

ABEYSINGHE RANASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Badulla while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 124-Hasalaka;

06. Mr. EKANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE JAYATHILAKA RANASINGHE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Badulla
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No.
124-Hasalaka;

07. Mr. NAWAGAMUWAGE LIONEL PERERA RANASINGHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Badulla while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 124-
Hasalaka;

08. Mr. YAHANGALA MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDRATHILAKA

RANASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
District of Badulla while being the Member of the panel of
Mediators for No. 124-Hasalaka;

09. Mr. W. W. WIJERATHNA BANDA RANASINGHE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Badulla while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 124-Hasalaka;

10. Mrs. GONAWALA RALLAGE KALYANAWATHIE GONAWALA

RANASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
District of Badulla while being the Member of the panel of
Mediators for No. 124-Hasalaka;

11. Mrs. DAYA WIJENDRA RANASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Badulla while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 124-Hasalaka;

12. Mr. WEERAPURAGE DICKSON FERNANDO RANASINGHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kurunegala
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 194-Kurunegala;

13. Mr. TENNAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE SIRIMALHAMI TENNAKOON to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kurunegala
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 194-Kurunegala;

14. Mr. NISSANKA ARIYAWANSHA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Kurunegala while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 194-Kurunegala;

15. Mr. KONARA MUDIYANSELAGE PUNCHIBANDA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Kurunegala while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 194-Kurunegala;

16. Mr. RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE DINGIRIBANDA RATHNAYAKA
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of
Kurunegala while being the Member of the panel of Mediators
for No. 194-Kurunegala;

17. Mr. LANDEGEDARA RANJITH to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Kurunegala while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 194-Kurunegala;

18. Mr. ADHIKARI MUDIYANSELAGE SISIRA BANDU to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kurunegala while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 194-
Kurunegala;

19. Mr. THOMMAGE MARIYA FRAKSHEED FERNANDO to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kurunegala while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 194-
Kurunegala;

20. Mr. KARUNANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE SIRISENA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kurunegala while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 194-
Kurunegala;

21. Mrs. RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE PREMATHILAKA

RATHNAYAKA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
District of Kurunegala while being the Member of the panel
of Mediators for No. 194-Kurunegala;

22. Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDRASENA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Kurunegala while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 194-Kurunegala;

23. Mr. DIVAKARA MOHOTTALALAGE DISSANAYAKA SAMARA-
DIWAKARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District
of Kurunegala while being the Member of the panel of
Mediators for No. 194-Kurunegala;

24. Mr. KARUNAPEDI DURAYALAGE SENA PADMAKUMARA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kurunegala
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 134-Nikaweratiya;

25. Mr. WANNINAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE DISSANAYAKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kurunegala
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 134-Nikaweratiya;

26. Mr. JAYASINGHE HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE PUNYAWARDHANA
HEMARATHNA JAYASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Maho while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 197-Maho;

27. Mrs. MOLAGODA BANDARALAGE BANDARAMENIKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Maho while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 197-
Maho;

28. Mr. RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE THILAKASIRI RATHNAYAKA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Maho
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 197-Maho;

29. Mr. PETER EPA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
District of Balapitiya while being the Member of the panel
of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

Other Appointments &c.,
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30. Mrs. OPATHA KANKANAMGE PEMAWATHIE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

31. Mr. KARIYAWASAM BOVITHANTHRI NEIL KAMAL to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

32. Mr. ANANDA PERERA GUNAWARDHANA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Galle while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four
Gravets);

33. Mr. MOHAMED MOHAMED AZEEM to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four Gravets);

34. Mr. AGAMPODI HENRY MENDIS GUNASEKARA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Galle while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four
Gravets);

35. Mr. NANAYAKKARA VISUMPERUMA ARACHCHIGE MAHENDRA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Galle while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 190-
Galle (Four Gravets);

36. Mr. JASIN THANTHIRIGE DAYARATHNA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Galle while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four
Gravets);

37. Mr. THISAWALANGU MUDIYANSELAGE GUNAWARDHANA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Monaragala
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 78-Medagama;

38. Mrs. MOHAMMED ISMAIL SITHY FAREEZA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Monaragala while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 78-Medagama;

39. Mrs. RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE MANGALIKA RATHNAYAKA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of
Monaragala while being the Member of the panel of Mediators
for No. 78-Medagama;

40. Mr. DISSANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE AMARASURIYA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Monaragala
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 78-Medagama;

41. Mr. THISAWALANGU MUDIYANSELAGE WIJEWARDHANA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Monaragala
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 78-Medagama;

42. Mr. WANASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE DHARMAPALA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Monaragala while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 78-
Medagama;

43. Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE JAYASINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Monaragala while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 78-Medagama;

44. Mr. TENNAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE KALUBANDA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Monaragala while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 78-
Medagama;

45. Mr. WANASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE OBEYWARDHANA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Monaragala
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 78-Medagama;

46. Mr. KANAPADIPILLAI SARAWANAMUTTU NAGALINGAM to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Monaragala
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 78-Medagama;

47. Mrs. RAJAPAKSHA MUDIYANSELAGE THALATHA KUMARI

RAJAPAKSHA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
District of Anuradhapura while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 873-Palagala;

48. Mrs. LALITHA NALANIE JAYAWARDHANA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Gampaha while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 119-Gampaha;

49. Mr. YAPA MUDIYANSELAGE BANDULA YAPA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island while being the Chairman of
the panel of Mediators for No. 188-Pathadumbara;

50. Mr. KULATHUNGA MUDIYANSELAGE RATHNAYAKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kandy while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 188-
Pathadumbara;

51. Mr. BASNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE BOLPANE GEDARA UPALI

BASNAYAKA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District
of Kandy while being the Member of the panel of Mediators
for No. 188-Pathadumbara;

52. Mrs. CHANDANIE HEMAKANTHI PUSHPAMALA GAWARATENNA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kandy
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 188-Pathadumbara;

53. Mr. KIMBULEKOTUWE GEDARA WIJERATHNA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Kandy while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 188-Pathadumbara;

54. Mr. HAPUKOTUWE HERATH MUDIYANSELE WIMALARATHNA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kandy while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 188-
Pathadumbara;

55. Mr. KAMSA MOHIDEEN SEKANDAR to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Kandy while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 188-Pathadumbara;

56. Mr. SEIDALAW ABDUL WAHAB to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Kandy while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 188-Pathadumbara;

57. Mr. UPASAKA GEDARA KARUNARATHNA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Kandy while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 188-Pathadumbara;

58. Mrs. G. L. KALYANI GUNAWARDHANA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Kandy while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 188-Pathadumbara;

59. Mr. DAYANANDA BANDA HERATH to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Kandy while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 188-Pathadumbara;

60. Mr. RANASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE THILAK RANASINGHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-
Uhana;

61. Mrs. HINIDUMA LIYANAGE GRACE KARUNAWATHI to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-Uhana;

62. Mr. KONARA MUDIYANSELAGE SUDUBANDA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-Uhana;
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63. MR. LIYANDENIYE ARACHCHILE PRABATH CHAMINDA BANDARA

LIYANDENIYA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
District of Ampara while being the Member of the panel of
Mediators for No. 12-Uhana;

64. VEN. SENAPATHIGE ANANDA THERA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Ampara while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-Uhana;

65. MRS. ATTANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE GEDARA HERATH MENIKE

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No.
12-Uhana;

66. MRS. SEMBARAWE WAGAPEDI GEDARA KALYANAWATHIE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-
Uhana;

67. VEN. BALANGODA MAHINDA THERA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Ampara while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-Uhana;

68. MR. WARSHAMANA DEWAYALAGE JINADASA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-Uhana;

69. MR. EDIRISINGHE ARACHCHIGE DONALD RATHNAJEEWA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-
Uhana;

70. MR. HENADHEERAGE DON HEMACHANDRA GUNASEKARA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-
Uhana;

71. MR. DINAMITHRAGE NIMAL KARUNARATHNA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-Uhana;

72. MR. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE AMARASINGHE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-Uhana;

73. MRS. KONARA MUDIYANSELAGE GUNAWATHIE MENIKE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Ampara while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-
Uhana;

74. MR. IMIYARALALAGE TIKIRI BANDA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Ampara while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 12-Uhana;

75. MR. MAHATHERANA MUDIYANSELAGE DORAKADA KUMBURE

GEDARA JAYASEKARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Ampara while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 12-Uhana;

76. VEN. WALDENIYE DHAMMARATHANA THERA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island while being the Chairman of the
panel of Mediators for No. 75-Elahera;

77. MRS. GUNAWATHIE RAMBUKPOTHA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Kegalle while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 13-Warakapola;

78. MR. MERAGAL DURAYALAGE LAL GUNATHILAKA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kegalle while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 13-Warakapola;

79. MRS. KARUNAPEDI LIYANAGE RATHNAWALIE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Kegalle while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 13-Warakapola;

80. MR. ASSELLAGE UPALI KAMALANATH JAYATHILAKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kegalle while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 13-
Warakapola;

81. MR. DISSANAYAKA ACHCHILLAGE KAMAL to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Kegalle while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 13-Warakapola;

82. MR. BIYAGAMA THENANNEHELAGE WINIE GUNATHILAKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kegalle while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 13-
Warakapola;

83. MR. DIYUNUGALGE KARUNADASA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Kegalle while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 13-Warakapola;

84. MR. BADDEGAMA SINHAGE WASANTHA KUMARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kegalle while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 13-Warakapola;

85. MR. BIYAGAMA THENNEHELAGE JAYARATHNA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Kegalle while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 13-Warakapola;

86. MRS. RANMUNIYALAGE SOMAWATHIE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Kegalle while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 13-Warakapola;

87. MR. MAHENDRA PRABHATH VITHANACHCHI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

88. MR. PIYADASA MANTHAKA GAMAGE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

89. MR. METARAMBA KANKANAMGE JAYASIRI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

90. MR. AMBAGAHAHEWAGE AMARASENA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

91. MR. KARUNATHILAKA TENNAKOON to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

92. VEN. WEIHENE THISSA THERA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

93. MR. ALUKDUWA HEWA GUNAWARDHANA GUNASENA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Balapitiya
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 127-Niyagama;

94. MR. ALUKDUWA HEWA GUNAWARDHANA PADMAKUMARA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Balapitiya
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for
No. 127-Niyagama;

95. MR. KARUNADASA EPA SENEVIRATHNA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

96. MR. GODAKANDA KANKANAMGE CHANDRASENA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;

97. VEN. URAGAHA SUDEWA THERA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Balapitiya while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 127-Niyagama;
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98. Mr. KANAGASABAPATHY THARMANAYAGAM to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Jaffna while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 247-Nallur;

99. Mr. LABUDUWE VIDANELAGE RATHNAYAKA BANDA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Polonnaruwa
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No.
106-Dimbulagala;

100. Mr. LANKADIYA KOTUWE DAVID to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Polonnaruwa while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 106-Dimbulagala;

101. Mr. MATUGAMA LIYANAGE SOMASIRI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Polonnaruwa while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 106-Dimbulagala;

102. Mr. LANKESHWARAGE SIRIYALATHA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Polonnaruwa while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 106-Dimbulagala;

103. Mr. VELUPILLAI DHARMARAJAH to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Mallakam while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 251-Uduvil;

104. Mr. RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE RATHNAYAKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Polonnaruwa
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No.
106-Dimbulagala;

105. Mr. HEMA PRIYANTHA WIJAYASENA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Polonnaruwa while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 141-
Thamankaduwa;

106. Mrs. SENEVIRATHNA MUDIYANSELAGE SRIYALATHA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Polonnaruwa
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No.
141-Thamankaduwa;

107. Mr. MALWADAM GEDARA KARUNASENA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Polonnaruwa while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 141-
Thamankaduwa;

108. Mr. JOHN PETER SURAWEERA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Polonnaruwa while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 141-Thamankaduwa;

109. Mr. DASSANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE MUDIYANSE DASSANAYAKA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of
Polonnaruwa while being the Member of the panel of
Mediators for No. 141-Thamankaduwa;

110. Mr. VENDAKOON MUDALIGE SOMAPALA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Kuliyapitiya while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 165-Pannala;

111. Mrs. SURIYA MUDIYANSELAGE SOMA SURIYA MENIKE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kuliyapitiya
while being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No.
165-Pannala;

112. Mr. MAPA MUDIYANSELAGE MATHURATHNA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Kuliyapitiya while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 165-Pannala;

113. Mr. HUNKIRI MUDIYANSELAGE TIKIRIBANDA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Walapane while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 59-
Udahewaheta;

114. Ven. POLONNARUWE ARIYADHAMMA THERA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Anuradhapura while being

the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-
Thirappane;

115. Mr. SOMADASAGE KAMAL MAHINDASOMA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Anuradhapura while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-
Thirappane;

116. Mrs. NANAYAKKARA WASAM HAVUPE VIDANEGE MARGRET

NANAYAKKARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
District of Anuradhapura while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 103-Thirappane;

117. Mr. NANDASENAGE SUGATH WEERAWANSHA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Anuradhapura while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-
Thirappane;

118. Mr. ARACHCHINAIDEGE SUMANAPALA alias ARACHCHIGE

SUMANAPALA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
District of Anuradhapura while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 103-Thirappane;

119. Mrs. PEDURU ARACHCHIGE MANGALIKA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Anuradhapura while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-
Thirappane;

120. Mr. KIRIBANDAGE  SENARATHNA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Anuradhapura while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-Thirappane;

121. Mr. DINGIRI BANDAGE LALITH GUNASINGHE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Anuradhapura while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-
Thirappane;

122. Mr. INDRASIRI ABEYWEERA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Anuradhapura while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-Thirappane;

123. Mr. PIYADASAGE SWARNAPALA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Anuradhapura while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-Thirappane;

124. Mr. ARAMBAGE WICKRAMASIRI to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Anuradhapura while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-Thirappane;

125. Mr. ABDUL HAMEEDU SAMIN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Anuradhapura while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-Thirappane;

126. Mr. HEWAHAMIGE JAYASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Anuradhapura while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 103-Thirappane;

127. Mrs. ANULA DEEGALA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of the panel
of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four Gravets);

128. Ven. THALANGALLE VIJITHA THERA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four Gravets);

129. Mr. ABDUL HAMEED MOHAMMED to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four Gravets);

130. Mr. DEWALEGAMA GAM ACHARIGE DHARMASENA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Galle while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four
Gravets);
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131. Mr. WERAGODAGE SAMSON to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of the panel
of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four Gravets);

132. Mr. INDRASENA ABEYSEKERA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of the panel
of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four Gravets);

133. Mr. HALAWATHAGE ANANDA PERERA JAYAWARDHANA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Galle while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 190-
Galle (Four Gravets);

134. Mr. GODAWATTAGE SUNIL WASANTHA ASHOKA DE SILVA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Galle while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 190-
Galle (Four Gravets);

135. Mrs. UDATIYAWALAGE SUMITHRA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four Gravets);

136. Mr. ELIAS HETTI GODAGE to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of the panel
of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four Gravets);

137. Mr. AMARADASA JAYARATHNA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 190-Galle (Four Gravets);

138. Mr. MEEPE GAMAGE AMARADASA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 60-Batuwangala (Neluwa);

139. Mr. WAHUMPURA GEDARA NIMAL KARUNATHILAKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of Galle while
being the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 60-
Batuwangala (Neluwa);

140. Mr. NELUWE HEWAGE NELSON  to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 60-Batuwangala (Neluwa);

141. Mrs. AMPAGODA LIYANAGE SOMAWATHIE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Galle while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 60-Batuwangala
(Neluwa);

142. Mr. HINGURAWA GAMAGE PIYADASA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 60-Batuwangala (Neluwa);

143. Mr. HINGURAWA GAMAGE ANURA KITHSIRI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Galle while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 60-Batuwangala
(Neluwa);

144. Mr. KARUNADASA GUNASEKARA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Galle while being the Member of the
panel of Mediators for No. 60-Batuwangala (Neluwa);

145. Mrs. MUKTHA MAYA DEEPANI DE SILVA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Negombo while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 03-Negombo;

146. Ven. PERIYAMKULAME PANNASEKARA THERA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

147. Mr. ILANGASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE AMARABANDU DISSANAYAKA

to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial District of
Kekirawa while being the Member of the panel of Mediators
for No. 171-Kekirawa;

148. Mr. ABDUL CADER LEBBE ABDUL RASEEDU to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

149. Mrs. PALINGU MENIKE ADHIKARI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

150. Mr. EKANAYAKA MUDIYANSELE UDAHAWALAWWE

PANDITHARATHNA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
District of Kekirawa while being the Member of the panel of
Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

151. Mr. S. G. M. P. B. SENEVIRATHNA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

152. Mr. TENNAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE SENEVIRATHNA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

153. Mr. WIJAYAWARDHANA PATABENDIGE JAYANHAMIGE

PREMASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
District of Kekirawa while being the Member of the panel of
Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

154. Mr. LAMAHEWAGE SAMARASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being the Member
of the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

155. Mr. UKKUBANDAGE WIJESEKARA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

156. Mrs. UDAHA WALAWWE PUNCHI KUMARIHAMY to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being
the Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

157. Mrs. KAPURU BANDAGE WIMALAWATHIE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being the
Member of the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

158. Mr. BANDARAGE KUDABANDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

159. Mr. VITHANAGE DON SIRISENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial District of Kekirawa while being the Member of
the panel of Mediators for No. 171-Kekirawa;

RAUFF HAKEEM,
Minister of Justice.

31st October, 2012
Ministry of Justice.

11-788
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No. 941 of 2012

I, Rauff Hakeem, Minister of Justice, by virtue of powers vested in me by Section 45(3) of the Judicature Act, No. 2 of 1978 do hereby
appoint the following Attorneys-at-Law as Justices of the Peace and Unofficial Magistrates for the relevant judicial divisions.

RAUFF HAKEEM,
Minister of Justice.

31st day of October, 2012.
Colombo 12,
Ministry of Justice.

Serial No. Name Address Judicial Zone

01. Mr. Aboobuker Mohamed No. 6, Meegammana Junction Gampola
Wais, Udathalavinna
Attorney-At-Law

02. Mr. Kalikutti Thadshanamurthi, No. 41, Thiruthonda Road, Batticaloa Batticaloa
Attorney-At-Law

03. Mrs. Murukkuwadura Saroja No. 21, Krispi Road, Galle. Galle
Priyadarshani Mendis
Attorney-At-Law

04. Mr. Kankani Achchi Haggalage Thilak No. 76, Main Street, Hettipola Hettipola
Nandana Sumanarathna,
Attorney-At-Law

05. Mrs. Herath Mudiyanselage Kamala Kattapitiya, Kobeigane Hettipola
Pushpakumari Herath,
Attorney-At-Law

06. Mrs. Jeni Shamalita Amarasinghe Ihalagama, Udubaddawa, Kuliyapitiya
Attorney-At-Law Kuliyapitiya

07. Mrs. Domingu Withanage Dammini Piduma, Kuliyapitiya Kuliyapitiya
Rukmal Angammana
Attorney-At-Law

08. Mr. Herath Mudiyanselage Nihal No. 56, 6th Lane, Mavdalupotha, Kurunagala
Herath Kirinde Yanthampalawa, Kurunagala
Attorney-At-Law

09. Mr. Malvila Sri Brahammana No. 20, Muhandiram Weerathunga Kurunagala
Thennakoon Mudiyanselage Mawatha, Negombo Road,
Jayaprema Bandara Thennakoon Kurunagala
Attorney-At-Law

10. Mr. Dunusinghe Mudiyanselage No. 68, Colombo Road, Kurunagala Kurunagala
Kirthi Gotabaya Dunusinghe
Attorney-At-Law

11. Mr. Robert Niroshan Gamage Lawyer’s Courts Complex, New
Attorney-At-Law Town, Embilipitiya Embilipitiya

12. Mr. Wikkramasinghege Sudath No. 83/2, Iluppugedara Road, Kurunagala Kurunagala
Wijevikkrama,
Attorney-At-Law
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13. Mr. Kasthuri Mudiyanselage No. 41/1, Adagala Para, Kurunagala Kurunagala
Wijewardana Banda
Attorney-At-Law

14. Mr. Sisira Kithsiri Weerasooriya No. 24 Leen Baan Street, Fort Galle Galle
Attorney-At-Law

15. Mrs. Chandrika Damayanthi No. 416/10 Ta, Godalindawatta, Galle
Munasinghe, Attorney-At-Law Jayasundara Mawatha, Hapugala

16. Mr. Weesingedara Weerasinghe No. 365, Wakwella Road, Galle Galle
Mudiyanselage Gunarathna Berty
Wijerathna
Attorney-At-Law

17. Mr. Liyadihathara Watta Berty Kurunduwatta, Ihalagoda, Walahanduwa Galle
Wimalasena,
Attorney-At-Law

18. Mr. Ranawaka Arachchige No. 71, Ihala Yagoda, Gamapaha Gampaha
Prassanna Ranawaka
Attorney-At-Law

19. Mr. Abdul Hameed Sameem No. 808, Deens Road, Akkareipattu Akkareipattu
Attorney-At-Law

20. Mrs. Sellapperumage Niliya No. 14, Mudaliyas Road, Negombo Negombo
Manori Devika Fernando
Attorney-At-Law

21. Mrs. Ramani Senavirathna, Henegama, Gampaha Gampaha
Attorney-At-Law

22. Mrs. Kankanmge Premanath No. 39/15C, Shanthi Lane, Shanthi Wattala
Kalehewatta, Road, Handala, Wattala
Attorney-At-Law

23. Mr. Yusuf Mohammed Anver No. 72, Moongalady 1 St. Lane, Samanthurei
Siyath, Samanthurei
Attorney-At-Law

24. Mr. Mohamed Haneefa No. 308, Kariyapper Road, Maruthamunai Samanthurei
Mohamed Hamsa
Attorney-At-Law

25. Mr. Adambawa Abdul Aroos No. 177, National School Road, Samanthurei
Attorney-At-Law Samanthurei

26. Mr. Mohamed Serif Mohamed No. 08, Main Street, Addalachchena Akkareipaththu
Samsuden
Attorney-At-Law

27. Mrs. Buddimathi Baddrani No. 57/5, Tissa Road, Thangalla Embilipitiya
Jayaweera,
Attorney-At-Law

Serial No. Name Address Judicial Zone
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28. Mrs. Ranaweera Witharana Samanwasa, Moraketiya Road, Embilipitiya
Samanthi, Pallegama, Embilipitiya
Attorney-At-Law

29. Mr. Sahabanduge Karunarathna No. 138, Kalagedi Ara, Embilipitiya Embilipitiya
Attorney-At-Law

30. Mr. Colomba Muhandirange No. 69/10A, Nisam Musthapa Mawatha, Colombo
Laksiri Jan De Silva Pansala Road, Mount Lavinia
Attorney-At-Law

31. Ms. Mallika Somasundaram No. 21, Wilson Street, Colombo 12 Colombo
Attorney-At-Law

32. Mr. Maha Bendarage Jayantha 423/3, Sriyani, Naduna, Ganemulla Gampaha
Bandaranayaka,
Attorney-At-Law

11-851

Serial No. Name Address Judicial Zone

Government Notifications
THE    SOCIETIES   ORDINANCE

Order under Section 18

BY virtue of the powers vested in me by Section 3 and 4 of the Societies
Ordinance (Chapter 123) I, Rishad Bathiudeen Minister of Industry
and Commerce.

01. Authorize the purpose for which the Society known as Parama
Nibbana Dharmayathanaya situated No. 15, Watareka, Padukka as a
purpose to which the powers and facilties of the Ordinance ought to
be extended.

02. Limited the application of that Ordinance to aforesaid society
from the provision of Section 5 (4) of that Ordinance.

RISHAD BATHIUDEEN,
Minister of Industry and Commerce.

31st October, 2012,
Ministry of Industry and Commerce,
No. 73/1, Galle Road,
Colombo 03.

11-850

L. D. B 277/40.

THE    ANTIQUITIES    ORDINANCE  (CHAPTER  188)

Order under Section 18

BY virtue of the powers vested in me by section 18 of the Antiquities
Ordinance (Chapter 188) I, Jagath Balasuriya, Minister of National

Heritage, do by this Order declare the monuments specified in the
Schedule to this Order, to be “Protected Monuments” for the
purposes of the aforesaid Ordinance.

The Notice under Section 19 in relation to the monuments specified
in the Schedule to this Order was published in Gazette No. 1,776 of
14th September, 2012.

Dr. JAGATH BALASURIYA,
Minister of National Heritage.

Ministry of National Heritage,
8th Floor, “Sethsiripaya”,
Battaramulla.
23rd October, 2012.

SCHEDULE

1. The caves with drip-ledge and Bodhi wall made of stone in the
Galagana Rajamaha Vihara belonging to the Arambekade Village
situated in the Grama Niladhari Division of Handungamuara-
Palkumbura (Grama Niladhari Division No. 360) in Galagedara
Divisional Secretary’s Division in Kandy District, Central
Province.

2. Kandekumbura Ambalama (doss house) in Galagedara situated
in the Grama Niladhari Division of Kandekumbura in Galagedara
Divisional Secretary’s Division in Kandy District, Central
Province.

3. The ancient Bikku dwelling and Preaching hall belonging to the
Wathupola Purana Sri Maha Vihara situated in the Grama
Niladhari Division of Wathupola in Udunuwara Divisional
Secretary’s Division in Kandy District Central Province.
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4. Manapadassana Lena and all Caves with drip-ledges and
Brahmi Letters including the Athabandi Lena. (Including a
Buffer zone with a boundary 20 feet from the periphery of the
cave including an access road with a minimum width of 6 feet)
in the Dulwala estate belonging to the Udadulwala Village
situated in the Grama Niladhari Division of Udadulwala in
Harispaththuwa Divisional Secretary’s Division in Kandy
District Central Province.

5. The Image house and preaching hall belonging to the
Viguhumpola Udawediyagoda Purana Vihara situated in the
Grama Niladhari Division of Viguhumpola in Haris Paththuwa
Divisional Secretary’s Division in Kandy District, Central
Province.

6. The Three caves with drip-ledge belonging to the Amunupura
Rajasingha Gal Len Vihara situated in the Grama Niladhari
Division of Amunupura in Yatinuwara Divisional Secretary’s
Division in Kandy District, Central Province.

7. The Kadireshan Kovil Premises at No. 24 of the Kothmale
Road belonging to the Nawalpitiya Village situated in the
Grama Niladhari Division of Nawalapitiya West, Pasbage
Korale Divisional Secretary’s Division in Kandy District,
Central Province.

8. The Cave temple with drip ledge, flight of steps and sacred-foot
stone belonging to the Yatawaththa Egodamulla Budugewatha
Cave temple in the Grama Niladhari Division of Divilla (Grama
Niladhari Division No. 337-E) in Yatawaththa Divisional
Secretary’s Division in Mathale District Central Province.

9. The rock cave (hiding place of  Weerapuran Appu) and
Archaeological ruins near it within the Precient in the area called
Weerapuran Appu situated in the Grama Niladhari Division
Wariyapola Waththa (Grama Niladhari Division No. 355-E) in
Ukuwela Divisional Secretary’s Division in Mathale District,
Central Province.

10. The ancient pond indentified “Kahapokuna” belonging to the
Wawiwa village situated in the Grama Niladhari Division of
Wawiwa-East in Devinuwara Divisional Secretary’s Division
in Mathara District, Southern Province.

11. Ancient image house and Uposathagara belonging to the
Wewrukannala Rajamaha Vihara situated in the Grama Niladhari
Division of Wewrukannala in Dikwella Divisional Secretary’s
Division in Mathara District, Southern Province.

12. The Light house in the land called Polkoratuwa on Wawiwage
road belonging to the Grama Niladhari Division of Devinuwara
(Grama Niladhari Division No. 433) in Devinuwara Divisional
Secretary’s Division in Mathara District, Southern Province.

13. Ancient Chapter house (pohoyageya) in the Sri Sunandharama
Vihara belonging to the Induruwa Yalegama village, situated in
the Grama Niladhari Division of Yalegama (Grama Niladhari
Division  No. 8) in Benthara Divisional Secretary’s Division
in Galle District, Southern Province.

14. The cave with drip-ledge, base stone, ancient stone pillars and
ruins of building belonging to the Baragama Galwilla Purana
Vihara situated in the Grama Niladhari Division Pahala Baragama
(Grama Niladhari Division No. 121) in Hambanthota Divisional
Secretary’s Division in Hambanthota District, Southern
Province.

15. The drip-ledged cave in the land called Nawagamuwa-Liyanage
Waththa situated in the Grama Niladhari Division of
Nawagamuwa (South) (Grama Niladhari Division No. 470/A)
in Kaduwela Divisional Secretary’s Division in Colombo
District, Western Province.

16. Image House with ancient paintings and Sculpture belonging to
the Sri Sudarshanarama Vihara situated in the Grama Niladhari
Division of Gurulama (Grama Niladhari Division No. 42) in
Mirigama Divisional Secretary’s Division in Gampaha District,
Western Province.

17. The ancient preaching hall in Dewalapola Sri Sudarshanarama
Purana Vihara situated in the Grama Niladhari Division of
Dewalapola (Grama Niladhari Division No. 106) in
Minuwangoda Divisional Secretary’s Division in Gampaha
District, Western Province.

18. Ancient image house belonging to the Halpe Sudharmarama
Purana Vihara situated in the Grama Niladhari Division of
Mahagama, Halpe (Grama Niladhari Division No. 42) in
Dewalapitiya Divisional Secretary’s Division in Gampaha
District, Western Province.

19. The Ancient Image House and preaching hall in the Bulugahagoda
Sri Jayasumanarama Purana Vihara situated in the Grama
Niladhari Division of East-Bulugahagoda (Grama Niladhari
Division No. 210) in Gampaha Divisional Secretary’s Division
in Gampaha District, Western Province.

20. Ancient image house belonging to the Gomarankanda
Samanakkanda Purana Vihara situated in the Grama Niladhari
Division of Pothuwil-west (Grama Niladhari No. 740-A) in
Beruwala Divisional Secretary’s Division in Kaluthara District,
Western Province.

21. The image house with paintings and sculpture of the Kandyan
Period and preaching hall belonging to the Ilukgoda
Shilamasthakarama Vihara situated in the Grama Niladhari
Division of Ilukgoda in Mawanella Divisional Secretary’s
Division in Kegalle District, Sabaragamuwa Province.

22. The drip-ledged cave in Makehelwala Pethigevita Waththa
situated in the Grama Niladhari Division of Makehelwala in
Mawanella Divisional Secretary’s Division in Kegalle District,
Sabaragamuwa Province.

23. The cave with drip-ledge and inscription (Bisokotu Lena) in the
Pattagama, Danagirigala Rajamaha Vihara situated in the Grama
Niladhari Division of Daswaththa in Mawanella Divisional
Secretary’s Division in Kegalle District, Sabaragamuwa
Province.
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24. The drip-ledged cave in the Karandana Purana Gallen Vihara
situated in the Grama Niladhari Division of West Karandana
(Grama Niladhari Division No. 143/D) in Ehaliyagoda
Divisional Secretary’s Division in Rathnapura District,
Sabaragamuwa Province.

25. The rock inscription and cave Temple with drip-ledge on the
Andiyagala rock in Bungiriya Galgane Paththini Dewala
belonging to Bungiriya Village situated in the Grama Niladhari
Division of Nabuluwa in Kahawaththa Divisional Secretary’s
Division in Rathnapura District, Sabaragamuwa Province.

26. The drip ledged cave called as “Budugalge” belonging to the
Helawaththa Village situated in the Grama Niladhari Division
of Amuwathugoda (Grama Niladhari No. 272-B) in Imbulpe
Divisional Secretary’s Division in Rathnapura District,
Sabaragamuwa Province.

27. The image House with paintings of the Kandyan period, ruins
of  building and chaithya mound in the Waththegama Rajamaha
Vihara belonging to the Viharamulla Village situated in the
Grama Niladhari Division of Waththegama in Siyambalanduwa
Divisional Secretary’s Division in Monaragala District, Uva
Province.

28. The drip-ledged caves, the flight of steps in the natural rock,
and inscriptions in the Waththegama, Batahelakanda belonging
to the Viharamulla village situated in the Grama Niladhari
Division of Waththegama in Siyambalanduwa Divisional
Secretary’s Division in Monaragala District, Uva Province.

29. The ruin mound with stone pillers in the Place called Maha
Bubula belonging to the Viharamulla Village situated in the
Grama Niladhari Division of Waththegamuwa in
Siyambalanduwa Divisional Secretary’s Division in Monaragala
District, Uva Province.

30. All drip-ledged caves in the place called Walasgalakanda
belonging to the Viharamulla Village situated in the Grama
Niladhari Division of Waththegama in Siyambalanduwa
Divisional Secretary’s Division in Monaragala District, Uva
Province.

31. The Site of ruins in the land called Meeyangodapitiya belonging
to the Waththegama Village situated in the Grama Niladhari

Division of Waththegama in Siyambalanduwa Divisional
Secretary’s Division in Monaragala District, Uva Province.

32. Archaeological ruins in the Place called Moramal Pokuna
belonging to the Viharamulla Village situated in the Grama
Niladhari Division of Waththegama in Siyambalanduwa
Divisional Secretary’s Division in Monaragala District, Uva
Province.

33. The rock with archaeological evidence in the land called
Suddigewaththa belonging to the Viharamulla village situated
in the Grama Niladhari Division of Waththegama in
Siyambalanduwa Divisional Secretary’s Division in Monaragala
District, Uva Province.

34. The ancient Stupa in place called Madagoda Bubula situated in
the Grama Niladhari Division of Wellawaya in Wellawaya
Divisional Secretary’s Division in Monaragala District, Uva
Province.

35. Asanagala (Stone bed) in the place called Koongas-Ara belonging
to the Viharamulla Village situated in the Grama Niladhari
Division of Waththegama in Siyambalanduwa Divisional
Secretary’s Division in Monaragala District, Uva Province.

36. The drip-ledged caves in the Nagalena Rajamaha Vihara belonging
to the Athimale village situated in the Grama Niladhari Division
of Siripura in Siyambalanduwa Divisional Secretary’s Division
in Monaragala District, Uva Province.

37. The ancient image house and Chaithya in the Yahalamadiththa
Purana Vihara situated in the Grama Niladhari Division of
Idamegama (Grama Niladhari Division No. 69-G) in Ella
Divisional Secretary’s Division in Badulla District, Uva
Province.

38. The ancient Chaithya mound and archaeological ruins near it
within the precinct in the Sri Waddana Raja Maha Vihara
belonging to the L. B. - 6 Kolaniaya Village situated in the Grama
Niladhari Division of Dehiwaththa (Grama Niladhari Division
No. 217) in Serunuwara Divisional Secretary’s Division in
Trincomalee District, Eastern Province.

11-771

NOTICE  UNDER  SECTION  25  AND  26  OF  THE  DEBT CONCILIATION  ORDINANCE  No.  39 OF 1941

THE Debt Conciliation Board wishes to make an attempt to bring about a Settlement between the Creditor and the Debtor indicated against
the application number in the Schedule hereto under the Debt Conciliation Ordinance Act, No. 39 of 1941, No. 5 of 1959, No. 24 of 1964,
No. 41 of 1973 and No. 19 of 1978.
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Therefore in terms of Section 25 (1) and 26 (1) of the Ordinance the relevant Creditors are hereby required to furnish to the Board
before the date they are required to appear before it the particulars of debt due to them from the under mentioned debtors.

N. W. GUNADASA,
Secretary,

Debt Conciliation Board Department.

Debt Conciliation Board Department,
No. 80, Adhikarana Mawatha,
Colombo 12.
09th November, 2012.

Application Name and Address Name and Address
No. of Debtor of Creditor

(01)
41672 Mr. Rajapaksha Pathirennehelage 1. Mr. Brayan Kristi Maxwala Fernando,

Sunil Dayarathna, No. 325A,
Liyanage Stores, East/Nainamadama,
Bothalegama, Nainamadama.
Lunuwila.

2. Mr. Rajapaksha Pathirennehelage Nimal
Rajapaksha,
Danwela Road,
Haldanduwana, Dankotuwa.

3. Mrs. Hettiarachchige Dona Niluka
Priyadarshani,
Pansal Handiya,
Kirimetiyana, Lunuwila.

4. Mr. Rajapaksha Mudiyanselage Janaka Dinesh
Rajapaksha,
No. 58/2, 80 Acres,
Kirimetiyana West,
Lunuwila.

(02)
42141 Mr. Rajapaksha Pathirage Don Selwin Mr. Pichchandalage Channa Madusanka

Nivond, No. 02, Wellakanaththa, Kalaeliya,
No. 315/2, Old Kandy Road, Ja-Ela.
Dalugama, Kelaniya.

(03)
42328 Mr. Kompannage Sudath Wijelal Mrs. Hewa Pedige Niranjala Shayamali Jayakodi,

Fonseka, No. 117/23, Katuwawala Lane,
No. 238/14A, Godigamuwa,
Rathna Mawatha, Dulammahara, Maharagama.
Bokundara, Piliyandala.

(04)
42343 Mrs. Hathurusingha Mudiyanselage Mrs. Disanayaka Mudiyanselage Kamalawathie,

Chandani Ruchika Hathurusingha, Galakumbura,
No. 531, Bohingamuwa, Kithalawa.
Kuliyapitiya.
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(05)
42371 Mrs. Nileepa Janaki Ekanayaka, Ms. Galhenage Don Sudeera Siriwardhana,

“Wasna”, Pahalahena, Kamburugoda, No. 341, “Sadhana”,
Bandaragama Elawella Road,

Ballapitiya, Horana.

(06)
42386 Mrs. Kirieldeniyage Miyurin Alius Mr. Buthpitiya Lekamalage Lalith Buthpitiya,

Kirieladeniyage Miyurin Winiprida, 23, Hekiththa Road, Hendala,
No. 470/A, Wattala.
Gane Road, Ragama.

(07)
42397 Mr. Don Nihal Wanniarachchi, Mr. Wanaguruge Don Indika Sarath Kumara,

7/23, Neelammahara Road, 3/1, Hokandara-South,
Godigamuwa, Hokandara.
Maharagama.

(08)
42403 Mrs. Basnagalage Dona Pushpa Kanthi, Gemunupura Sarvodaya Sramadana Samitiya

No. 435/D, Weliwita, Kaduwela. Limited,
No. 101/A/5/4,
Kothalawala, Kaduwela.

(09)
42405 Mr. Habaraduwa Peellage Anura Mr. Udumalagamage Chandrasiri Dias,

Priyantha Charles, Gunawardhana Mawatha,
“Priya”, Yakkalamulla.
Imaduwa Road,
Yakkalamulla.

(10) Mr. Yahala Badige Gunadasa Aludeniya, Mrs. Wijesekara Arachchilage Somawathie
42414 Hunuwala, Opanayaka. Menike, Udawela,

Opanayaka.

(11)
42428 Mrs. Kaluthanthrige Dona Pushpa Mrs. Dona Iruka Sanjeewani Hatharasingha,

Priyadarshani, No. 48/1,
142/1A, Hospital Road, New Town,
Hewagama, Kaduwela. Mulleriyawa.

11-948

Application Name and Address Name and Address
No. of Debtor of Creditor

My No. : ED/1/25/2/2/05
Non-formal and Special Education Branch,
Ministry of Education,
Isurupaya, Battaramulla.
22.08.2012.

NOTICE ON  THE  APPOINTMENT OF  NEW SCHOOL  MANAGERS  IN  ASSISTED  SPECIAL  SCHOOLS  FOR
CHILDREN  WITH  SPECIAL  NEEDS  UNDER  THE  ASSISTED  (ENGLISH)  SCHOOLS  REGULATIONS

BY virtue of the authority conferred upon me under the Assisted Special Schools Regulations, it is hereby notified for the information of the
public that the persons whose names are given below have been appointed as new school managers of the Assisted Special Schools given below.
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Serial Name of the Assisted Name of the Proposed Province District Category of approved
No. Special School proposed new date of Students

Manager of the appointment
School

1. Matu/Mayura Special Mr. Robin Pasquvel 06.09.2004 Western Kalutara Children with mental
School, Matugama deficiencies

2. Chi/Siviraja Special Mr. M. Premachandra 07.05.2005 North Kurunegala Children with deficiencies
School, Mahawewa Mendis Western of sight, hearing and

mental deficiencies

3. Mon/Subhagya Special Mr. S. M. Samasundara 13.07.2008 Uva Monaragala Children with deficiencies
School Wellasse, in sight and hearing
Kumbukkana

4. Chitralane Special Mrs. Delcia Gunawardena 25.11.2010 Western Colombo Children with mental
School, deficiencies
Colombo 05.

5. Ha/Deaf and Blind Mr. W. R. Perera 06.03.2011 Southern Hambantota Children with deficiencies
Special School, in hearing and sight
Tangalle

6. Anu/Deaf and Blind Mr. Wijesundara 09.06.2011 North Anuradhapura Children with
Special School, Mudiyanselage Central deficiencies in hearing
Anuradhapura Dissanayake and sight

7. Ho/Sukhitha Special Mr. Sepala Martin 31.07.2011 Western Kalutara Children with mental
School, Horana Perera Deficiencies

8. The School for the Mr. Hassam Aalim 06.02.2012 Eastern Batticaloa Children with hearing and
Deaf of the East Mohamed Ismail mental deficiencies
Lanka Islamic
Welfare Society
for the disabled,
Kaththankudi

9. G/Neth Savan Sarana Mr. Peramuna 05.03.2012 Southern Galle Children with hearing sight
Special School, Kankanamge and mental deficiencies
Panchaliya, Jayasinghe
Dikkumbura

10. Matale/Rath Koswana Mr. Leelarathne 06.12.2012 Central Matale Children with hearing
Sahana Special Jayasundara deficiencies
School

S. M. GOTABHAYA JAYARATNE,
Secretary,

Ministry of Education.

22nd October, 2012.
Non formal and Special Education Branch,
Ministry of Education,
“Isurupaya”, Battaramulla.

11-965
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S. W. R. D.  BANDARANAIKE  NATIONAL  MEMORIAL  FOUNDATION

Financial Statements, 31st December, 2010

S. W. R. D. BANDARANAIKE  NATIONAL  MEMORIAL  FOUNDATION  LAW,  No. 2  OF  1975  REPORT  FOR  THE
YEAR  2010  IN  TERMS  OF  SECTION 13 (5)

01. The Board of Management:-
H. E. The President Mahinda Rajapaksa - Chairman

Mr. M. D. D. Pieris - Pro-tem Chairman.
Prof. A. V. Suraweera
Mr. Nihal Rodrigo
Mr. Sunimal Fernando
Mrs. Siva Obeysekera

THE following Government agencies and Departments continued to be responsible for certain specified services during the year
under review, we thank for their assistance.

(a) Sri Lanka Telecom Ltd. - Maintenance of sound and telephone equipment.
(b) Police Department - Security and general duties.
(c) Rakna Arakshaka Lanka Ltd.-Additional Security service.

02. Catering - Mount Lavinia Hotels Ltd.,
The Commission earned by the foundation in 2010 was Rs. 17,303,846 as against Rs. 31,365,769 in 2009.

03. Some Important activities held at the BMICH during the year 2010 are listed below:-

International Ayurvedic Conference
Bonjour Cinema Festival, Embassy of France
Architects Exhibition - Sri Lanka Institute of Architects
Bakmaha/X’mas Shopping Festival - B. M. I. C. H.
INCO Exhibition - Incorporated Engineers of Sri Lanka
Asia Pacific Dental Congress
IIFA Fashion Show
Presidential Awards for Travel and Tourism
Book Fair - Sri Lanka Book Publishers Association
Construct - 2010 - The Construct Association
Medicina Alternativa - World Congress
FACETS Exhibition - Sri Lanka Gem and Jewellery Association

The Total income earned from the hire of facilities in 2010 was Rs. 128,734,056 as against Rs. 140,285,284 in 2009.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF  S. W. R. D. BANDARANAIKE NATIONAL MEMORIAL
FOUNDATION

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of the S. W. R. D. Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31st December, 2010, and the income statement and Cash Flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Revenue and Expenditure Returns
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements :
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka

Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion :
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance

with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit includes examining, on a  test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit. We therefore believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion :
In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the Foundation maintained proper accounting records for the year ended

December 31, 2010 and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Foundation’s state of affairs as at December, 31, 2010 and
its result of their operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Chartered Accountants,
Colombo,
02nd August, 2012.

S. W. R. D. Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Balance Sheet As at 31st December, 2010

Notes 2010 2009
Rs. Rs.

Assets :
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 14 918,296,549 822,965,164
Staff Loan 15 13,250,415 12,130,074
Work-in-Progress-Building 14,955,412 21,381,473
Improvements to Building 24,349,144 22,074,934

–––––––––– ––––––––––
970,851,520 878,551,645
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Current Assets :
Inventories 52,469,913 47,179,601
Trade and Other Receivables 242,359,462 229,346,618
Short Term Investment 16 277,471,833 271,876,177
Bank and Cash Balances 28,554,045 10,821,590

–––––––––– ––––––––––
600,855,253 559,223,986
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Total Assets 1,571,706,773 1,437,775,631
––––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Funds and Liabilities :
Accumulated Fund 17 522,904,218 452,093,077
Capital Reserves 925,522 925,522

–––––––––– ––––––––––
523,829,740 453,018,599
–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––
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Specific Funds :
Capital Aid Funds 18 541,653,179 541,653,179
Maintenance Aid Funds 25,942,983 25,942,983
Library Books Donation Fund 212,377 212,377
Repair and Maintenance Reserves 4,164,226 4,164,226
Miscellaneous Funds 19 4,919,126 4,919,126
S W R D Bandaranaike Scholarship Fund 100,000 100,000

–––––––––– ––––––––––
576,991,891 576,991,891
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Non Current Liabilities :
Retirement Benefit Obligations 20 30,840,321 26,021,538
Long Term Loan 21 3,207,198 5,164,718
Deferred Income 22 2,700,992 3,368,328

–––––––––– ––––––––––
36,748,511 34,554,584

–––––––––– ––––––––––

Current Liabilities :
Trade and Other Payables 190,602,942 132,966,356
Short Term Liability Payable within One year 3,150,645 2,839,395
General Deposit 230,863 230,863
Bank Overdraft 240,152,181 237,173,943

–––––––––– ––––––––––
434,136,631 373,210,557
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,571,706,773 1,437,775,631–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

Directors. Finance Manager.

S. W. R. D. Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Income Statement Account for the Year ended 31st December, 2010

Notes 2010 2009
Rs. Rs.

Income from Main Activities
S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation Hire of Hall and Facilities 128,734,056 140,285,284

Interest Income 24,030,181 43,594,813
Commission Received 17,303,846 31,365,769
License Fees 99,445,642 100,036,048

BCIS Income 6 18,912,672 20,238,918
BMICH Hospitality Services 7 104,838,512 79,074,013

–––––––––– ––––––––––
393,264,909 414,594,845

Add : Other Income
Sundry Income 17,509,527 4,176,997
Public Viewing of Hall 325 119,335
Sound System Charges 2,648,700 1,990,000
Sale of Popcorn Account 871,759 556,590
Donation 81,074,000 -
Net Income from SAARC - 26,347,694
Lapsed Cheque Write-off 1,680,717 -

–––––––––– ––––––––––
497,049,937 447,785,461
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Less : Expenditure
S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial General Mangement 8 132,157,235 140,888,194

Foundation General Repairs and Maintenance 9 12,979,232 21,028,893
Staff Administration Expenses 10 103,860,533 104,983,428
Depreciation 11 13,135,905 13,170,994

12 21,131,757 19,776,250
BCIS Expenses 13 142,080,465 100,038,453
BMICH Hospitality Services Expenses

(425,345,127) (399,886,211)
–––––––––––– ––––––––––––

Surplus for the Year 71,704,810 47,899,250
–––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––

S. W. R. D. Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st December, 2010

2010 2009
Rs. Rs.

Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus for the Year 71,704,810 47,899,250

Adjustments/or :

Depreciation 18,552,860 18,856,149
Provision for Gratuity 6,230,848 3,297,283
Interest income (28,603,439) (43,594,813)
Amortization of Grants (667,336) -

–––––––––– ––––––––––
Operating Surplus before working Capital Changes 67,217,743 26,457,868

Increase/(Decrease) in working Capital Changes
Inventories (5,290,312) 26,054,139
Trade and Other Receivables (13,070,184) (113,270,067)
Trade and Other Payables 57,882,026 60,762,592

–––––––––– ––––––––––
106,739,272 4,532

Retiring Gratuity Paid (1,600,165) (1,100,665)
–––––––––– ––––––––––

Net Cash (Out flow)/ In flow from Operating Activities 105,139,107 (1,096,133)

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (107,458,184) (101,041,307)
Interest received 28,603,439 43,594,813
Sale Proceeds from Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment - 8,563,220
Miscellaneous Funds (893,668) -
Sovereign Residence Investment (2,274,210) -

–––––––––– ––––––––––
23,116,484 (49,979,407)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net Staff Loan granted (1,120,341) 933,799
Loan obtained during the year (Net) (1,646,270) (2,839,395)
Net Grant Received - 2,050,902

–––––––––– ––––––––––

Dicrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 20,349,873 (49,834,101)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year (Note A) 45,523,824 95,357,925

–––––––––– ––––––––––
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year (Note B) 65,873,697 45,523,824

–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––
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(A) Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the Year
Short Term Investments 271,876,177 261,799,029
Balance at Bank and Cash in hand 10,821,590 7,388,206
Bank Overdraft (237,173,943) (173,829,310)

–––––––––– ––––––––––
45,523,824 95,357,925

–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

(B) Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year
Short Term Investment 277,471,833 271,876,177
Bank and Cash in Hand 28,554,045 10,821,590
Bank Overdraft (240,152,182) (237,173,943)

–––––––––– ––––––––––
65,873,696 45,523,824

–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

S. W. R. D. Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31st December, 2010

1. Accounting Policies
General Accounting Convention
The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, whereby transactions are recorded at the
values prevailing on the dates when the assets were acquired, liabilities incurred or the capital obtained. Further, the Financial
Statements are in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri
Lanka.

1.2 Previous year figures and phrases have been re-arranged wherever necessary to confirm the current year’s position.

1.3 Post Balance Sheet Events
All material events occurring after the Balance Sheet Date have been considered and where necessary adjustments have been
made in the Financial Statement.

2. Assets and Bases of their Valuation :

2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
Costs incurred in acquiring improving or extending a property, plant and equipment have been treated as Capital Expenditure.
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation.

2.2 Depreciation
Depreciation has been calculated in order to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment on the reducing balance method
basis over the expected useful lives of the concerned assets, using the following rates :

BMICH Hospitality
BCIS Services

Building 12.5% – –
Plant and Machinery 12.5% – –
Motor Vehicle 12.5% 25% 12.5%
Office Equipment 12.5% 25% 12.5%
Furniture and Fittings 12.5% 25% 12.5%
Yards and Garden 12.5% 12.5% –
T. V. Equipment 12.5% 12.5% –
Garden Equipment 12.5% 12.5% –
Conference System 12.5% 12.5% –
BCIS Equipment 12.5% 12.5% –
Other Equipment 12.5% 12.5% –
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Fire Alarm System 12.5% 12.5% –
Carpet and Curtains 12.5% 12.5% –
Crockery and Cutlery 12.5% 12.5% 12.5%
BCIS Library Books – 20% –
Electrical Equipment 12.5% – 12.5%
Sundry Assets 12.5% 25% –
Plant and Equipment – – 12.5%
Linen – – 12.5%
Kitchen Equipment – – 12.5%

Full provision for depreciation has been made in the month of purchase and no depreciation has been charged in the Month of
Disposal.

2.3 Leased Assets
Where property, plant and equipment have been financed by leasing arrangements, which transfers substantial benefits and
risks of ownership, the assets are treated as if they have been purchased outright and are included in Property, Plant and
Equipment which have been depreciated according to rates specified above. The Capital Elements of the leasing commitment
has been shown as an obligation under finance lease.

2.4 Inventories
Inventories have been shown on an estimated basis.

2.5 Short-term Investments
Short-term investments are valued at the lower of cost or Market Value.

2.6 Trade Receivables and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables have been stated at the amounts they are estimated to realise.

2.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand and at Bank and call deposits, fixed deposits at bank and Treasury Bills.

3. Liabilities and Provisions :

3.1 Current Liabilities
Current liabilities are those which fall due for payment on demand or within one year from the Balance Sheet Date. Non current
liabilites will fall due for payment one year or more after the balance sheet date.

3.2 Taxation
The institute is exempt from income tax under Section 8 (a) (xii) of the Inland Revenue Act, No. 10 of 2006.

3.3 Retirement Benefit :

(I) Defined Benefit Plan
Provision has been made for retirement gratuity from first year of services for all employees in conformity with SLAS 16.
However, under the payment of Gratuity Act, No. 12 of 1983, the liability to an employee arises only on completion of
five years continued service.

(II) Defined Contribution Plan
All employees of the Company are members of the Employee’s Provident Fund and Employee’s Trust Fund, to which the
employers contribute 12% and 3% respectively of each employees consolidated salary.

4. Income and Expenditure :

(a) Income generated from main activities and other income are acocunted on accrual basis.

(b) All expenditure incurred in continuing the operations and maintaining the capital assets in a state of efficiency have been
charged to income and expenditure account in arriving at the excess of income over expenditure.
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(c) Profit/(Loss) on sale of Popcorn, Janitorial Service BC1S income and Agency Post Office activities are taken to Income
and Expenditure Account for the year on cash basis.

5. Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the “Indirect Method”.

6. BCIS Income

Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Rs. Rs.

Languages Course Fees 4,437,000 3,433,500
International Relations Course Fees 9,567,284 8,128,189
Conflict Resolution Course Fees 30,000 1,321,400
Other Income (Note 6.1) 4,878,388 7,355,829

––––––––– –––––––––
18,912,672 20,238,918
––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

6.1 Other Income - BCIS

Interest Income 4,573,258 6,557,098
Auditorium Rental Income - 688,803
Exchange Gain/(Loss) (56,972) (26,117)
Other Income 12,750 36,110
Library Department 125,497 99,935
Seminar Income 127,126 -
Over Provision for Gratuity 96,729 -

––––––––– –––––––––
4,878,388 7,355,829

––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––
7. Income - BMICH Hospitality Services and BMICH Hospitality Services Outlet

Apartment Income 26,878,432 6,492,778
Food Sales - Counter 33,932,518 31,753,573

Restaurant 40,582,055 32,155,970
Beverage Sales 657,454 322,358
Furniture Hire Income 262,500 5,995,344
Other Income 2,525,553 2,353,990

––––––––– –––––––––
104,838,512 79,074,013

––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

8. General Management Expenses

General Administration 84,726,307 96,844,487
Finance Administration 46,757,645 43,937,395
Stores Administration 673,283 106,312

––––––––– –––––––––
132,157,235 140,888,194

––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

9. General Repairs and Maintenance

Civil Engineering 3,579,631 7,719,051
Electrical Engineering 3,307,374 3,582,676
House Keeping 2,420,792 4,879,766
Gardens 3,671,435 4,847,402

––––––––– –––––––––
12,979,232 21,028,893
––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––
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10. Staff Administration Expenses

General Administration - Staff Services 34,503,600 34,565,036
Finane Administration 7,554,949 7,360,817
Stores Administration 3,478,804 3,168,204
Security 717,720 1,238,520
Civil Engineers 17,104,821 15,984,699
Electrical Engineering 15,144,596 16,882,122
House Keeping 16,503,485 17,309,095
Garden 8,852,558 8,474,935

––––––––– –––––––––
103,860,533 104,983,428

––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

11. Depreciation

Plant and Machinery 2,321,870 2,542,099
Motor Vehicles 2,595,297 2,916,113
Office Equipment 777,508 739,812
Other Equipment 611,726 632,629
Fire Alarm System 84,326 96,373
Furniture and Fittings 1,335,492 1,249,395
Carpets and Certains 1,673,738 1,696,095
Crockery and Cutlery 1,596 1,823
Conference System 502,018 573,735
Gardens Equipment 121,951 111,738
Sundry Assets - Equipment 223,880 255,186
Electrical Equipment 1,819,082 1,588,856
TV Equipment 20,958 23,952
Elevator 11,027 10,258
Accounting Package 189,314 151,873
Tubes 682,068 510,846
Container 164,054 70,211

––––––––– –––––––––
13,135,905 13,170,994
––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

12. BCIS Expenses

Migration Trends and Challenges 10,600 -
International Relations 3,553,164 2,554,513
Languages 2,974,523 2,166,223
Confilict Resolution 28,035 508,825
Sri Lanka Youth Parliament - 737,411
Library Department 558,193 957,000
General Maintenance 132,336 454,373
General Expenses 12,599,051 10,874,516
Genral Utility expenses 522,901 564,168

––––––––– –––––––––
20,378,803 18,817,029
––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

Depreciation Office Equipment 375,865 311,733
Library Books 49,344 107,574
Computer and Audio Equipment 151,807 196,693
Furniture and Fittings 63,588 153,140
Motor Vehicle 34,089 58,141

Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Rs. Rs.
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Air Conditions - 19,274
Other Equipments 78,261 112,666

–––––––––– ––––––––––
752,954 959,221

–––––––––– ––––––––––
21,131,757 19,776,250

–––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––

13. BMICH Hospitality Services and BMICH Hospitality Services Outlet

Cost of Sales 44,482,333 33,150,864
Distribution Cost 4,224,080 2,786,512
Administrative Expenses 93,293,378 64,027,202
Finance Cost 80,674 73,874

––––––––– –––––––––
142,080,465 100,038,452

––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

14. Property, Plant and Equipment WDV WDV
at 31.12.2010 at 31.12.2009

Rs. Rs.

SWRD Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation 879,136,826 781,233,709
BCIS 1,699,297 2,170,241
BMICH Hospitality Services 36,830,797 39,294,025
BMICH Hospitality Services Outlet 629,629 267,189

––––––––– –––––––––
918,296,549 822,965,164

––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

14.1 S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation
Property, Plant and Equipment

WDV Additions Depreciation WDV
at During the for the at

01.01.2010 year year 31.12.2010
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Building 660,199,116 33,074,994 - 693,274,110
Temporary Building - 63,444,672 - 63,444,672
Yards and Gardens 646,384 - - 646,384
Plant and Machinery 17,794,695 2,155,451 2,321,870 17,628,276
Motor Vehicle 20,412,793 1,705,000 2,595,297 19,522,496
Office Equipment 6,121,330 237,805 777,508 5,581,627
T. V. Equipment 167,667 - 20,958 146,709
Other Equipment 4,602,114 567,624 611,726 4,558,012
Fire Alarm System 674,609 - 84,326 590,283
Furniture and Fittings 10,433,842 636,473 1,335,492 9,734,823
Carpets and Curtains 12,553,250 2,033,654 1,673,738 12,913,166
Crockery and Cutlery 12,764 - 1,596 11,168
Conference System 4,016,146 - 502,018 3,514,128
Garden Equipment 870,328 307,948 121,951 1,056,325
Sundry Assets - Building 21,995,385 - - 21,995,385

- Equipment 1,791,038 - 223,880 1,567,158
Electrical Equipment 11,391,493 5,284,405 1,819,082 14,856,816
Elevator 88,217 - 11,027 77,190
Sage Accpac ERP - - -
Accounting Package 1,466,177 432,068 189,314 1,708,931

Year Ended Year Ended
31.12.2010 31.12.2009

Rs. Rs.
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TUBS 5,456,547 - 682,068 4,774,479
Container 539,814 1,158,928 164,054 1,534,688

–––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––
781,233,709 111,039,022 13,135,905 879,136,826
–––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––

14.2 BCIS
Property, Plant and Equipment

WDV Additions Depreciation WDV
at During the for the at

01.01.2010 year year 31.12.2010
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Office Equipment 1,191,579 - (375,865) 815,714
Library Books 563,063 34,344 (49,344) 548,063
Computer and  Audio Equipment 131,091 69,666 (151,807) 48,950
Furniture and Fittings 169,414 - (63,588) 105,826
Motor Vehicle 34,089 - (34,089) -
Air Conditioner - - - -
Other Equipment 81,005 178,000 (78,261) 180,744

–––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––
2,170,241 282,010 (752,954) 1,699,297

–––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––

14.3 BMICH Hospitality Services
Property, Plant and Equipment

Motor Vehicle 3,283,074 - (410,384) 2,872,690
Office Equipment 624,597 86,499 (85,220) 625,876
Furniture and Fittings 26,941,917 163,350 (3,379,357) 23,725,910
Crockery and Cutlery 3,092,655 529,432 - 3,622,087
Electrical Equipment 3,060,855 326,399 (398,838) 2,988,416
Kitchen Equipment 1,664,647 556,707 (241,294) 1,980,060
Linen 333,822 389,661 (54,729) 668,754
Plant and Equipment 292,458 100,325 (45,779) 347,004

–––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––
39,294,025 2,152,373 (4,615,601) 36,830,797

–––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– ––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––

14.4 BMICH Hospitality Services Outlet
Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture and Fittings 26,641 - (3,330) 23,311
Crockery and Cutlery 24,550 25,660 - 50,210
Electrical Equipment 154,917 - (19,365) 135,552
Kitchen Equipment 61,081 385,180 (25,705) 420,556

–––––––––– –––––––––– ––––––––– –––––––––
267,189 410,840 (48,400) 629,629

––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––

WDV Additions Depreciation WDV
at During the for the at

01.01.2010 year year 31.12.2010
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
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31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Rs. Rs.

15. Staff Loan
S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Distress Loan 13,250,415 12,130,074––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––

16. Short Term Investment
S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation

Bank of Ceylon - Fixed Deposit 212,000,067 211,979,782
National Savings Bank - Fixed Deposit 3,196,031 2,731,110
Central Bank - Treasury Bills 18,926,740 17,364,106
Sundry Security Deposits and Investments 110,738 110,738

––––––––––– –––––––––––
234,233,576 232,185,736––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––

BCIS
Central Finance Company PLC 20,249,920 18,505,669
BOC - Treasury Bills - 130479 19,274,793 17,624,554
Sampath Bank - Fixed Deposit 3,713,544 3,560,218

––––––––––– –––––––––––
43,238,257 39,690,441

––––––––––– –––––––––––
277,471,833 271,876,177

––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––
17. Accumulated Fund

S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation
Balance as at 01st January, 2010 458,169,628 390,226,327
Prior Year adjustment (893,668) (457,718)
Surplus for the year 111,165,847 68,401,019

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Blance as at 31st December, 2010 568,441,807 458,169,628

––––––––––– –––––––––––

BCIS
Balance as at 1st January, 2010 14,887,888 14,425,219
Surplus for the year (2,219,086) 462,669

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Balance as at 31st December, 2010 12,668,802 14,887,888

––––––––––– –––––––––––

BMICH Hospitality Services and BMICH Hospitality Services Outlet
Balance as at 01st January, 2010 (20,964,439) -
Deficit for the Year (37,241,952) (20,964,439)

––––––––––– –––––––––––
Balance as at 31st December, 2010 (58,206,391) (20,964,439)

––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––
522,904,218 452,093,077

––––––––––– –––––––––––

18. Foundation Capital Aid Fund
S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation
Balance at Beginning and End 541,653,179 541,653,179

––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––

19. Miscellaneous Funds
S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation
Other Funds 919,306 919,306
Exhibition Center Fund 3,999,820 3,999,820

––––––––––– –––––––––––
4,919,126 4,919,126

––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––
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20. Retirement Benefit Obligation
S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation
Balance as at 01st January, 2010 25,863,000 23,824,920
Add : Provision for the year 6,025,315 3,138,745

––––––––––– –––––––––––
31,888,315 26,963,665

Less : Payments made during the year (1,600,165) (1,100,665)
––––––––––– –––––––––––

Balance as at 31st December, 2010 30,288,150 25,863,000

BMICH Hospitality Services and BMICH Hospitality Services outlet
Provision for the year and
Balance as at 31st December, 2010 460,800 158,538

BCIS
Provision for the year and Balance as at 31st December, 2010 91,371 -

––––––––––– –––––––––––
30,840,321 26,021,538

––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––
21. Long Term Liabilities

S W R D Bandaranaike National Memorial Foundation
Obligation Under Finance Leases

(i) Hatton National Bank - 3810/003/BR 23
Obligation is secured by Mitsubishi Lancer Car which is
leased out under the lease agreement and is payable 48
equal monthly instalments from December, 2008.

Balance at Beginning of the Year 4,215,261 5,650,962
Adjustment (583,279) -

––––––––– –––––––––
3,631,982 5,650,962

Less : Rental Payments during the year (1,281,876) (1,435,701)
––––––––– –––––––––
2,350,106 4,215,261

Less : Interest in suspense (723,882) (1,702,006)
––––––––– –––––––––
1,626,224 2,513,255

Less : Amount payable within one year shown under Current Liabilities (887,031) (887,031)
––––––––– –––––––––

739,193 1,626,224
––––––––– –––––––––

(ii) Hatton National Bank - 3810/003/BR 24
Obligation is secured by Isuzu Half Body truck which is leased
out under the lease agreement and is payable 48 equal monthly
instalments from December, 2008.

Balance at Beginning of the Year 2,923,524 3,955,356
Less: Rental Payments during the year (1,031,832) (1,031,832)

––––––––– ––––––––––
1,891,692 2,923,524

Less : Interest in suspense (592,317) (915,399)
––––––––– –––––––––
1,299,375 2,008,125

Less : Amount Payable with in One Year shown under current liabilities (708,750) (708,750)
––––––––– –––––––––

590,625 1,299,375
––––––––– –––––––––

31.12.2010 31.12.2009
Rs. Rs.
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(iii) Bank of Ceylon 02/2008
Obligation is secured by Mitsubishi Lancer Car which is leased out under
the leased agreement and is payable 48 equal monthly instalments from 31.12.2010 31.12.2009
December, 2008. Rs. Rs.

Balance at Beginning of the Year 4,615,310 6,197,702
Lease Obtained (602,000) -

––––––––– ––––––––––
4,013,310 6,197,702

Less : Rental Payment during the year (1,375,992) (1,582,392)
––––––––– –––––––––
2,637,318 4,615,310

Less : Interest in suspense (918,308) (1,999,425)
––––––––– –––––––––
1,719,010 2,615,885

Less : Amount payable within one year shown under current Liabilities (896,875) (896,875)
––––––––– –––––––––

822,135 1,719,010
––––––––– –––––––––

(iv) Bank of Ceylon 01/2008
Obligation is secured by Single Cabib Pickup which is leased out under
the leased agreement and is payable 48 equal monthly instalments from
July, 2008.

Balance at Beginning of the Year 1,287,330 1,802,262
Less : Rental Payment during the year (514,932) (514,932)

––––––––– ––––––––––
772,398 1,287,330

Less : Interest in suspence (252,289) (420,482)
––––––––– –––––––––

520,109 866,848
Less : Amount Payable with in One Year shown under current liabilities (346,739) (346,739)

––––––––– –––––––––
173,370 520,109

––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––
(v) Bank of Ceylon TAFE - 45 DI Tractor

Obligation is secured by TAFE 45 DI Tractor which is leased out under
the leased agreement and is payable 48 equal monthly instalments from
October, 2010

Lease Obtained 1,614,192 -
Less : Rental Payments during the year (67,258) -

––––––––– ––––––––––
1,546,934 -

Less : Interest In suspense (353,809) -
––––––––– –––––––––
1,193,125 -

Less : Amount payable within one year shown under current Liabilities (311,250)
––––––––– –––––––––

881,875 -
––––––––– –––––––––
3,207,198 5,164,718

––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

22. Deferred Income
BCIS

Balance at 1st January 3,368,328 1,317,426
Add : Grants received during the year - 4,987,003

––––––––– –––––––––
3,368,328 6,304,429
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Less : Amortization/expenses made during the year (667,336) (2,936,101)
––––––––– –––––––––

Balance as at 31st December 2,700,992 3,368,328
––––––––– –––––––––––––––––– –––––––––

The Grants are received for specific projects defined by the donors and those were amortized during the year based on the
expenditure incurred on the defined projects.

11-848

UNIVERSITY OF JAFFNA - SRI LANKA

Statement of Financial Performance for the Year ended 31st December, 2009

(Illustrating the Classification of Expenses by Nature)

Year ended Year ended
Operating Revenue 31st Dec. 2009 31st Dec. 2008

Rs. Rs.

Recurrent Grant 649,600,000.00 601,700,000.00
Net Income/(Loss) from other Activities 11,578,911.44 8,077,661.74
Other Income 12,232,537.21 12,297,584.50

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––
673,411,448.65 622,075,246.24

Financial Assistance to Students 62,945,050.00 59,646,300.00
–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––

736,356,498.65 681,721,546.24
Operating Expenses

Personal Emoluments 507,592,088.19 450,366,271.30
Travelling 5,376,087.96 3,824,041.84
Supplies and Consumable Used 23,472,187.66 18,177,830.58
Maintenance 8,344,481.42 6,151,203.09
Contractual Services 40,531,477.36 38,119,366.01
Research and Development 167,650.10 351,178.75
Depreciatiom and Amortisation Expenses 101,953,469.37 117,602,597.11
Other Operating Expenses 22,774,283.33 11,838,824.05

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––
Total Operating Expenses 710,211,725.39 646,431,312.73
Surplus / (Deficit) from Operating Activities 26,144,773.26 35,290,233.51
Financial Assistance to Students 62,945,050.00 59,646,300.00

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––
Surplus (Deficit) from Total activities (36,800,276.74) (24,356,066.49)
Extra Ordinary Items 348,369.65 461,240.14
(Write off and other adjustments)
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for the period (37,148,646.39) (24,817,306.63)
Transferred to General Reserve

Certified Correct

Prof. N. SHANMUGALINGAM, K. KANAGARATNAM,
Accounting Officer, Bursar.

Vice Chancellor.

9th March,2010
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University of Jaffna - Sri Lanka

Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December, 2009

31st Dec. 2009 31st Dec. 2008
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 716,419,003.84 621,748,128.80
Investment (L. T.) 171,558,664.80 160,392,862.92
Capital Work in Progress 203,667,546.53 1,091,645,215.17 203,989,221.53 986,130,213.25

Current Assets
Inventories/Stocks 13,454,948.95 10,824,104.64
Trade and Other Receivables 313,394,117.44 370,867,408.96
Investment (ST) 6,742,196.34 5,978,193.41
Cash and Cash equlvalents 330,001,393.15 663,592,655.88 259,426,463.02 647,096,170.03

––––––––––––– –––––––––––––– –––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––
Total Assets 1,755,237,871.05 1,633,226,383.28

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payables 23,147,603.05 34,913,519.23
Accrued Expenses 3,658,849.67 4,129,871.03
Self  Financing Courses 56,533,031.64 83,339,484.36 43,237,497.04 82,280,887.30
Non Current Liabilities
Payables 4,307,936.40 3,754,733.90
Provisions for Gratuity 173,430,880.25 167,338,593.75
Restricted Fund 204,716,062.71 382,454,879.36 191,646,270.87 362,739,598.52

––––––––––––– –––––––––––––– –––––––––––––– ––––––––––––––
Total Liabilities 465,794,363.72 445,020,485.82

Total Net Assets 1,289,443,507.33 1,188,205,897.46
Net Assets/Equity
Accumulated Fund (Capital Grant) 1,968,581,754.50 1,840,002,849.00
Reserve
General Reserve (822,459,627.30) (775,796,359.52)
Bond Obligation Reserve 143,263,520.13 123,941,547.98
Capital Reserve 57,860.00 1,289,443,507.33 57,860.00 1,188,205,897.46

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––
Total Net Assets/Equity 1,289,443,507.33 1,188,205,897.46
Total Liabilities 465,794,363.72 445,020,485.82

–––––––––––––– –––––––––––––
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,755,237,871.05 1,633,226,383.28

––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––––––––––––––––– –––––––––––––
(Total Funds employed)

Certified Correct

Prof. N. SHANMUGALINGAM, K. KANAGARATNAM,
Accounting Officer, Bursar.

Vice Chancellor.
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The Vice Chancellor,
University of Jaffna.

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the University of Jaffna for the Year ended 31st December, 2009 in
terms of Section 108 (2) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978.

The audit of Financial Statements of the University of Jaffna for the year ended 31st December, 2009 was carried out under my
direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in
conjunction with Sections 108 (1) and 111 of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and Sub-sections (3), (4) and (7) of Section 13 of the
Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971. This report issued in terms of Section 108 (2) of the Universities Act. A detailed report in terms of Section 13(7)
(a) of the Finance Act was furnished to the Vice Chancellor of the University on 23rd July, 2010.

1:2 Responsibility of the Management for the Financial Statements :

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards.  This responsibility includes, designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

1:3 Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion :

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. Audit opinion, comments and findings
in this report are based on review of the financial statements presented to audit and substantive tests of samples of transactions. The
scope and extent of such review and tests were such as to enable as wide an audit coverage as possible within the limitations of staff,
other resources and time available to me. The audit was carried out in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements. The audit includes the examination
on a test basis of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in financial statements and assessment of accounting policies used
and significant estimates made by the managment in the preparaton of financial statements as well as evaluating their overall
presentation. I have obtained sufficient information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpose of my audit. I therefore, believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. Sub-sections (3) and (4)
of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 give discretionary powers to the Auditor General to determine the scope and extent
of the audit.

2. Financial Statements :

2:1 Opinion :

So far as appears from my examination and to the best of information and according to the explanations given to me, I am of opinion
that the University of Jaffna had maintained proper accounting records for the year ended 31st December, 2009 and except for the
effects on the financial statements of the matters referred to in paragraph 2.2 of this report, the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University of
Jaffna as at 31st December, 2009 and the financial results of its operation and cash flows for the year then ended.

2:2 Comments on Financial Statements :

2:2:1 Accounting Policies :

(a) Although the depreciation on property, plant and equipment should be calculated individually to avoid charging the depreciation
on fully depreciated assets in terms of Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No. 18, contrary to this requirement the University had
charged the depreciation on total value of the assets. Therefore, the accuracy of the depreciation shown in the accounts
amounting to Rs. 101,953,469 could not be considered as disclosing the correct position of each asset.

(b) According to the University Grants Commission Circular No. 649 of 05th October, 1995 and Sri Lanka Accounting Standard
No. 18, the depreciation should not be computed for the value of land. However, due to failure to identify the value of land
and buildings separately the depreciation at a rate of 5% had been provided on lands as well.

2:2:2 Accounting Deficiencies :

The following observations are made :

(a) Even though Books and periodical valued to Rs. 2,191,072 had not been received to the University up to the end of the year
under review, depreciation amounting to Rs. 438,214 had been charged on these items of asset.
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(b) Payment of gratuity amounting to Rs. 1,827,934 had not been charged against the provision for payment of gratuity in the
accounts.

2:2:3 Accounts Receivable and Payable

Following observations are made :

(a) Supplies advance, displaced staff salary advance, building advance, sundry debtors and staff loan balances aggregating
Rs. 4,718,972 had not been recovered for the period ranging from 01 to 23 years. Therefore the recoveries of these balances
are in doubtful.

(b) Confirmations had not been received from the debtors and creditors aggregating Rs. 551,553,205 and Rs. 26,801,425
respectively.

(c) Age analysis in respect of debtors aggregating Rs. 1,697,624 had not been furnished to audit.

(d) A sum of Rs. 37,455 over paid to an academic staff on account of books allowance in 1997 had not been recovered yet.

2:2:4 Lack of Evidence for Audit :

Assets, advance to building constructions, bond obligations, liabilities and expenditure valued at Rs. 1,696,378,718 could not be
satisfactorily vouched in audit due to non availability of required evidence.

2:2:5 Non-compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations and Management Decisions :

Instances of non-compliance with the provisions in the following Laws, Rules, Regulations etc. observed in audit were brought
to the notice of the Vice Chancellor of the University by my detailed report issued.

(a) Sections 153 and 155 of the Inland Revenue Act, No. 10 of 2006

(b) Sri Lanka Accounting standards No. 16 and 18

(c) Financial Regulations :
Nos. 103 (1), 104, 109, 264, 271 (2) (b), 396, 569, 570, 571, 688 (2) (f), 702 (3), 756, 835, 845, (3), 1645 and 1646.

(d) Establishments Code for the University Grants Commission and the Higher Educational Institutions :

Section 7:6 to 7:6:2 and 7:8 of Chapter V,
Section 3:1 of Chapter XX,
Section 3:1 (f) of Chapter XXIV,
Section 2:2 (f) of Chapter XXV
Section 2:4 and 5 Chapter XXVI,
Section 3:3 of Chapter XXVI,
Section 9:4 of Chapter XXVII

(e) Treasury Circular No. 828 of 29th July, 1979.

(f) Public Administration Circulars No. 41/90 of 10th October, 1990, No. 19/89 of 23rd March, 1989, No. 11/1995 of 16th
March, 1995 and No. 22/99 (IV) - 2004 of 27th December, 2004.

(g) University Grants Commission Circulars :

(i) No. 63 of 25th February, 1980 ;
(ii) No. 30/94 of 20th April, 1994

(h) Value added Tax Circular No. 03 of 18th January, 2007 issued by the Department of Inland Revenue.
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3. Financial and Operating Review

3.1 Financial Review :

3.1.1 Financial Results :

According to the financial statements presented, the working of the University for the year under review had resulted in a deficit
of Rs. 686,748,646 before taking the Government grant for recurrent expenditure as compared with the corresponding deficit of
Rs. 626,517,307 for the preceding year. After taking the Government grant of Rs. 649,600,000 received for recurrent expenditure,
the deficit for the year under review had been reduced to Rs. 37,148,646 and the Government grant of  Rs. 601,700,000 received
for recurrent expenditure for the preceding year the deficit of that year had been reduced to Rs. 24,817,307.

3.1.2 Utilization of Specific Funds :

The specific funds amounting to Rs. 11,571,939 received had been transferred to fixed deposit account without being utilized for
the purposes for which they were granted.

3.1.3 Uneconomic Transactions :

Following observations are made :

(a) One hundred direct telephone lines had been provided for faculties and service units in the University and most of those direct
telephone lines had been utilized for internal communication in the University although, an internal communication system was
already available in the University. As a result the telephone charges amounting to Rs. 7,132,248 paid could have been reduced to
Rs. 6,800,248 if the intercom system is in operation in its full capacity.

(b) Although cash balances ranging from Rs. 314 Million to Rs. 352 Million were held at the faculty of Graduate studies and external
exam unit at the end of each month of the year under review, action had not been taken to invest this money in an interest bearing
source. As a result considerable amount of income had been deprived to the University.

(c) Even though a guest house facility is available at the University and a guest house keeper was appointed and salary aggregating
Rs. 207,150 had been paid for the year under review, a sum to Rs. 421,548 had been paid to various lodges as accomodation
charges (food and Lodging) for guests arrived during the year under review.

(d) A sum of Rs. 343,645 had been paid to a private contractor for levelling and Gardening of courtyard of the New Arts block at the
University including the maintenance labour charge of Rs. 195,000. This maintenance job could have been done by the labourers
of the University.

3.1.4 Assets Management :

The Following observations are made :

(a) Two Scooters had remained unused for more than eight years.
(b) A land purchased for construction of Management Faculty at a cost of Rs. 6,589,667 had not been utilized for over 5 years for

the intended purpose.
(c) 5,258 items of 10 Category of inventory aggregating Rs. 200,305 had been remained idle at the stores over eight years.
(d) A time recording machine purchased for Rs. 182,400 had been remained unused since 2001.
(e) 225 steel beds which were purchased for Rs. 2,137,500 had been remained unused for over two years.

3.1.5 Identified Losses :

(a) Losses of fixed assets, stores items and books, to the value of Rs. 348,370 had been written off during the year under review.

(b) A sum of Rs. 90,062 had been recovered by a bank for the cancellation of six letters of credit for the period 2006 to 2009.

3.1.6 Delays in Projects :

The Following observations are made:-
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(a) An advance payment of the consultancy fees amounting to Rs. 750,375 had been made to the National Water Supply and
Drainage Board during the year 2008 for introducing a waste water disposal system to the female hostel complex of the
University. However, the works had not been commenced even up to end of the year under review.

(b) A sum of Rs. 7,611,885 had been paid to a construction company during 1999 to 2000 for the construction work for an
Auditorium at Medical Facultry. However, construction works had not yet been fully completed. Further due to undue delay the
cost of construction would be increased tremendously and the objective of this building also had not been achieved. In addition
a sum of Rs. 13,000,000 had been paid to the Dept. of Buildings during the years 2005 and 2006 for the Interior decoration
works, which was not yet commenced.

(c) A sum of Rs. 2,607,050 had been paid in the year 2005 as an advance to the Ceylon Electricity Board for the supply of Bulk
Electricity to the faculty of Agriculture. But that project had not yet been commenced.

(d) Although a sum of Rs. 2,000,000 had been paid to the Department of Buildings as an advance for the construction of over head
tank for students Hostel at Thirunelvely in 1989, works to the value of Rs. 1,590,000 only had been completed. As a result
students of this facility are being affected.

(e) A sum of Rs. 6,589,667 had been paid in 2005 to purchase a land for the construction of building for Faculty of Management and
Commerce. The project had not yet been commenced.

(f) A sum of Rs. 1,323,071 had been paid as Value Added Tax to a company in Colombo and another sum of Rs. 8,820,474 had been
paid from SIDA IT Networking Project to the same company. No progress report relating to the above project had been made
available for audit. This project was commenced on early part of the year 2005 but it was not completed even up to 30th June,
2010. As a result the objective of the project had not been achieved as expected.

(g) Three advances amounting to Rs. 3,200,000, 3,014,000 and Rs. 5,615,000 had been released on 31st December, 2004, 16th
November, 2005 and 10th November, 2006 respectively to the Chief Engineer, Department of Buildings of the then North East
Provincial Council for the construction of overhead tank and sump for Vavuniya Campus at Pambaimadu.

The Construction of sump work had been completed. However, the overhead tank and balance works had not been completed.
In the mean time, the contract was terminated by the Department of Buildings. A sum of Rs. 2,439,956 had already been paid
to the Contractor up to the termination. A fresh Agreement to the value of Rs. 5,615,000 with another contractor had been signed
on 10th November, 2006 for balance works. But the works had not yet been completed up to 30th June, 2010.

3:2 Human Resources Management

The Following observations are made :

(a) Appointments to the permanent posts of lecturers had been made separately to each and every Faculty of the University as a
general rule resulting in engaging several lecturers in the same field of study. In preparing time tables of various Faculties, the
availability of the service of permanent lecturers in other Faculties had not been considered. Whenever the service of lecturers in
the permanent staff were required for another Faculty, separate letters of appointment had been issued to them as visiting
lecturers and additional lecture fees had been paid for such services.

(b) In several instances, temporary lecturers, tutors, demonstrators etc. had been appointed on the request made by the Heads of
Department of the University without following proper recruitment procedures.

(c)  The regular feature of the University in filling the vacant posts of academic staff is in an improper manner without giving an
opportunity to complete those who have qualified and expecting employment in the University system. Although this had been
pointed out in my reports for the last several years, no action had been taken to rectify these deficiencies.

3:3 Courses and Examinations

The Following observations are made :

(a) Total numbers of students registered in 10 courses of the University were 4776. Total recurrent expenditure incurred during the
year under review amounted to Rs. 423,716,860. The average recurrent cost per student for the year was Rs. 88,718

(b) Dates to hold the examinations for various courses conducted under each faculty of the University and target dates to release
results of the examinations had not been determined. It was further observed that there were considerable delays in releasing the
results of examinations conducted by certain Faculties during the years 2008 and 2009. According to the University Grants
Commission Circular No. 636 of 14th July, 1995 results should be released within three months after the examination. But
results had been delayed by periods ranging from 6 to 12 months.
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3:4 Granting Leave with Pay and No Pay for Postgraduate Studies

The Following observations are made :

(a) Study leave had been approved for more than one year to the lecturers who had gone abroad for studies without taking into
consideration of the instructions stipulated in Section 27.4 of Chapter 10 of the Establishments Code for the University Grants
Commission and the Higher Educational Institutions.

(b) There were instances of approving study leave to the lecturers who were under probationary period before completing one year
service.

3:5 Budgetary Control

Significant variations were observed between the budget and the actual thus indicating that the budget had not been made use of as an
effective instrument of management control.

4. Systems and Controls

Deficiencies observed during the course of audit were brought to the notice of the Vice Chancellor of the University by my detailed report
issued in terms of Section 13 (7) (a) of the Finance Act. Special attention is needed in respect of the following areas of control:-

(a) Human Resources Management,
(b) Budget,
(c) Stores,
(d) Contract Adminstration,
(e) Library Administration,
(f) Fixed Assets.

H. A. S. SAMARAWEERA,
Acting Auditor General.

Observation of the Governing Authority of the University of Jaffna on Report of the Auditor General on the Accounts of the
University of Jaffna for the year ended 31st December, 2009.

2.2.2  Accounting Deficiencies

(a) We have taken action to avoid such situation
(b) The treatment of Payment of the gratuity in the accounts has been done properly.

2.2.3  Accounts Receivable and Payable

(a) (i) Supplies advance :- Action has be taken for the balance amount.
(ii) Salary advance of Rs. 16,760 for displaced staff.:- Action had been taken to write off in 2010.
(iii) Building Advance:- Action had been taken to settle the unsettled advance in 2010.
(iv) Staff Loan :- Action has been taken to recover.

(b) Most of the receivable amounts represent the balance of loans/advances paid to the employees and the payable account represent
the students deposit and staff security deposits. In this context, obtaining the confirmation was not considered.

(c) Age Analysis had been furnished in the Schedule for 2009 rendered to the Audit. Please revisit it. However the age analysis for the
sum of Rs. 1,697,624.00 is given below for your easy reference.

(i)  Rehabilitation Advance Build - Vavuniya Campus Rs. 850,000

Age Analysis Amount (Rs.) Remarks

08 years 850,000 Settled in 2010.



1213I fldgi : (I) fPoh ----- YS% ,xld m%cd;dka;s%l iudcjd§ ckrcfha .eiÜ m;%h ----- 2012'11'23
PART  I :  SEC.  (I) – GAZETTE OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA – 23.11.2012

(ii)  Advance to Road Development - Rs. 842,824.

Age Analysis Amount (Rs.) Remarks

22 years 170,000 The Works Engineer has been requested to take necessary
20 years 62,600 action to settle these advances with the Project Monitoring
19 years 1,307 Committee, Finance Committee and the Council approval.
18 years 138,700
17 years 6,600
5 years 463,617

––––––––––––
842,824

––––––––––––––––––––––––

(iii) Supplies Advances (Equipment)

Age Analysis Amount (Rs.) Remarks

01 Year 4,800 Settled in 2010

(d) Action has been taken to rectify.

2:2:4 Action has been taken as follows.

Description of items Balance as at Evidence not Action has been
in the accounts 31st December, 2009 (Rs.) made available taken

affected

University of Jaffna Valuation and Board of Action has been taken to complete the Board
survey reports of Survey

(a) Land and buildings 676,019,806 Valuation and Board of Action has been taken to complete the
survey reports Board of Survey

(b) Land 28,994,671 Verification reports Action has been taken to complete the
showing the value of Board of Survey
fixed assets

(c) Office furniture 616,424,777 - do - Action has been taken to complete the
Board of Survey

(d) Library books and 204,969,346 - do - Action has been taken to complete the
periodicals Board of Survey

(e) Motor vehicles 21,475,415 - do - Action has been taken to complete the
Board of Survey

(f) Cloaks 2,986,215 - do - Action has been taken to complete the
Board of Survey

(g) Plant and Machinery 2,132,537 - do - Action has been taken to complete the
Board of Survey

(h) Telephone Exchange 3,055,843 - do - Action has been taken to complete the
Board of Survey

(i) Postal 14,145 Verification report Action has been taken to complete the
Board of Survey
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(j) Stamp in hand 19,671 Verification report Action has been taken to complete the
Board of Survey

(k) Stock in Departments 302,462 - do - Action has been taken to complete the
Board of Survey

(l) Other recurrent expenses 633,008 Details Schedule Details available in file
 (Accrued)

(a) Advance to Building
Department

Road Development 842,824

Rehabilitation advance for 11,236,231
Building

Advance to CEB 2,607,050

Emergency Rehabilitation 542,563 Estimates, bills of
building advance quantities, agreements

measurement sheet, Details in the file maintained by work
Advance to North East 4,854,955 work completion engineer and SAR/capital works
Provincial Council certificate and official

cash receipts etc.
Faculty of Agriculture 3,150,000
Dept. for computer
units

(b) Rehabilitation advance 2,465,857
Vavuniya Campus

(c) Bond Obligation 107,839,707 Age Analysis available

(d) Supplies Advance 1,679,533 Age Analysis available in the schedule - 2009
Vavuniya Campus

(s) Purchase of computers 3,783,139 Bill File available in the supplies unit

(t) Purchase of Digital Camera 337,500 Bill File available in the supplies unit
Sony

(u) Lapsed payment of 11,463 F. R. 115 Approval F/C and council approval available
telephone charge

1,696,378,718

2:2:5 Action has been taken to comply with certain lapses in complying with the provisions in the Universities Act, E. Code and
Circulars etc.

3:1:2 Funds could be utilized as per the criteria’s given by the donor.

3:1:3 (a) It is with an anticipation that the ongoing and Networking project within the University funded by SIDA will replace, we
postponed to effect the intercom system. There were unavoidable delay in completing the Network by the contractors due
to the prevailing situation. But now this Networking project is recommenced and nearing completion and then the unnecessary
charges to Telecom will be reduced.
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(b) The Cash balance available due to the collection of several Self Financing Courses. The Self  Financing Courses are running
Courses within the stipulated period. Also the amount received from Bond obligation and Engowment Fund are included in
the balance and these have been transferred to the Fixed Deposits from time to time.

(c) The guest house available at the university has very little facilitates such as Air condition and other items. Professors and
other Officials are not willing to stay in this present condition. We are taking steps to improve the facilities.

(d) The number of unskilled labourers of the University has not been increased substantially to meet our needs in the last 25
years. Whereas the space and the infrastructures have been increased more than fourfold. Further nearly 1/3 of the vacancies
at the Maintenance Branch remain unfilled due to the procedural barriers. Since the available staff engaged with important and
urgent works only, this work being outsourced.

3:1:4 (a) Action is being to repair the Scooters.

(b) There was a delay in getting Cabinet approval for this project. But now after obtaining the Cabinet approval as well as
architectural approval is received, the 01st phase of the construction is now completed.

(c) Action has been taken to use the items mentioned in the report.

(d) There were some impediments in implementing this item. But now action has been taken towards this.

(e) The beds that were purchased for the use by out station students with additional private residential hostels. And now these
beds are being reserved for the re establishing Siddha Medicine hostels and for the additonal needs of the existing hostels.

3:1:6 (a) The delay is due to the revision of the plan due to the experience by the Nisha Floods and also due to the financial limitations.
Now we are proceeding with it.

(b) The University also regrettably admit this delay and given attention to complete this work and with frequent communication
with the Buildings Dept., Colombo and the changing environment of the country the completion of this contract is now in
progress.

(c) We were holding this money with CEB with depositive anticipation of the re-establishing our Faculty of Agriculture in
Kilinochchi. But now the prolong delay and the limitation of fund now this money has been transferred to another urgent
project of hostel (Medical Faculty) in 2010.

(d) Due to the adverse situation prevailed in North and due to lack of funds this was delayed. Now action is being taking to
recommence.

(e) This refers the answer given under 3.1.4 (b).

(f) IT networking project had been undertaken by the University of Colombo School of Computing under the SIDA IT
Networking Project. According to the terms and conditions the University of Jaffna had to meet the payment of VAT.
Accordingly the University paid Rs. 1,323,071.10 as VAT to the Enterprise Technology (Pvt) Ltd who is the Contractor
assigned the contract by the University of Colombo School of Computing. Further University of Jaffna had not paid
Rs. 8,820,474 to the University of Colombo School Computing. This amount was paid by the University of Colombo
School of Computing to the contractor. The project report from the University of Colombo School of Computing can be
obtained for verification.

In fact as we referred in the answer 3.3.3 (a) This project is being delayed due to the prevailing situation and the contractors.
Now with the change of environment this project is being activated and nearing completion.

(g) The Contract being changed due to the unavoidable situation faced by the Contractor and now with the change of contractor
the work is in progress.

3:2 (a) The permanent teaching staff are involved in Faculty as well as interfacully teaching without any additional remuneration
other than their salaries. When the teaching load of a teacher in his/her departments/Faculty is far in excess of the approved
academic norms of a particular academic position, payment is made by appointing them as visiting lecturers for the lectures
They take out side their academic norms in departments out side the faculty to which they belong to. Only a small number
of such visiting appointments are made under inevitable circumstances.
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Cadres are determined by the University Grants Commission based on the needs of each Faculty. Further although the title
of the “Field of Study” may look alike, the scope of the course and the courses contents are varied. In few other occasions
eminent persons of a particular field also invited as visiting Professors.

(b) The temporary posts in Assistant Lecturer, Tutor, Demonstarator and instructors are regularly advertised before the
commencement of every academic year and recruitment is made by following the proper recruitment procedure.

However when an appointed person resigns or leaves the service during an academic year and when there is no adequate
time to fill the vacancy by advertisement, appointments are made on the request of the Head and the Dean in a very few
occasions, so as to carry out the academic programmers within the Scheduled academic calendar. Such appointments (a few)
are made only for the balance period of the appointments of the person resinged.

(c) We are very conscious in recruiting academic positions with excellence and every effort is being taken in this regard
according to the UGC regulations. In fact in certain disciplines in spite of our repeated advertisements, we are unable to find
appropriate candidates. In such circumstances we employed visiting or contract staff. This again only few instances. In this
regard we expect a conscious attention and clear understanding.

3:3 (b) In some Faculties examinations are conducted at the end of the academic year. In some at the end of each semester. However
the results of the examinations conducted at the end of the first semester are released along with the result of the second
semester. This is the examinations regulations. This is because of the results are released for each semester, there is a
possibility of students skipping two out of five course units in the second semester. However the structures of the Degree
Programmed are changed now and for the new batches of students results are released within three months.

3:4 (a & b) In special occasions such as the candidate obtained valuable scholarship.

3:5  The following steps have been taken with regard to Budgetary Control.

(i) Budget is approved by the Finance Committee and the Council annually;
(ii) Vote Ledger is computerized in order to monitor the expenditure within the allocation;
(iii) Monthly Comparative statement (Budgeted amount-Actual Expenditure) is placed before the Finance Committee;
(iv) Sub imprest to the Vavuniya Campus is monitored by a separate votes ledger at the Finance Branch of the University.

Compiled by the Bursar.

11-795

N (PVS) 27908.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Electro Frost Engineers (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Electro Frost
Engineers (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 01.03.2001
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of

Miscellaneous Departmental Notices

three months from this date the name of “Electro Frost Engineers
(Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the
Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-742
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PV 21657.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Tel Tronics Holdings (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Tel Tronics
Holdings (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 23.03.2005
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Tel Tronics Holdings
(Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the
Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-745

PV 21564.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
BIT’ N Apple (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Bit’ N Apple
(Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 25.04.2000 under
the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying
on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Bit’N Apple (Private)
Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off
the Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company will
be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-746

PVS 8761.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Macdonald’s Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Macdonald’s
Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 01.07.1982 under the
provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 145) is not carrying
on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Macdonald’s  Limited”,
will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-743

N (PVS) 44947.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
City Corporate Trading  (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “City Corporate
Trading (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on 09.02.2006
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “City Corporate Trading
(Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the
Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-744
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N (PBG) 82.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
(Apayen) Seemitha Athugalpura Paudgalika Bus

Samagama

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “(Apayen)
Seemitha Athugalpura Paudgalika Bus Samagama”, a Company
Incorporated on 18.05.2001 under the provisions of the Companies
Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “(Apayen) Seemitha
Athugalpura Paudgalika Bus Samagama”, will unless cause is shown
to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this
office and the Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-747

PVS 923 PBS.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
W. Leo Fernando (Gikiyanakande) Estates Company

Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “W. Leo
Fernando (Gikiyanakande) Estates Company Limited”, a Company
Incorporated on 20.12.1950 under the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance Act, No. 51 of 1938 is not carrying on business or in
operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “W. Leo Fernando
(Gikiyanakande) Estates Company Limited”, will unless cause is
shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept
in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-748

PV 21447.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Microtel (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Microtel
(Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on “20.03.2003” under
the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying
on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Microtel (Private)
Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off
the Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company will
be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-749

PV 4617.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Nirssco (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Nirssco
(Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on “28.03.1995” under
the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying
on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Nirssco (Private) Limited”,
will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register
of Companies kept in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-750
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PV 24.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Venora M and E (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Venora M and
E (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on “21.03.2006”
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Venora M and E (Private)
Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off
the Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company will
be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-751

PV 67.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Ceylon Cosmo Group (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Ceylon Cosmo
Group (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on “30.04.2007”
under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Ceylon Cosmo Group
(Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be
struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office and the
Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-752

PV 21658.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
S M S Far East Building Resources (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “S M S Far East
Building Resources (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on
“10.01.2005” under the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17
of 1982 is not carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “S M S Far East Building
Resources (Private) Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the
contrary, be struck off the Register of Companies kept in this office
and the Company will be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
25th October, 2012.

11-753

PV 6806.

COMPANIES  ACT,  No. 07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
Acette Lanka (Private) Limited

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Acette Lanka
(Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on “06.01.2004” under
the provisions of the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not carrying
on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Dias Karunaratne Hettiarachchi, Registrar
General of Companies, acting under Section 394 (3) of the Companies
Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby give notice that at the expiration of
three months from this date the name of “Acette Lanka (Private)
Limited”, will unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off
the Register of Companies kept in this office and the Company will
be dissolved.

D. K. HETTIARACHCHI,
Registrar General of Companies.

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.
26th October, 2012.

11-754
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PEOPLE’S    BANK—DANKOTUWA    BRANCH

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was passed by the
Board of Directors of People’s Bank under Section 29D of the
People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32
of 1986 at their meeting held on 30.09.2010.

Whereas Rajapaksa Dewage Sunil Gunawardana and
Dissanayaka Mudiyanselage Priyantha Nandani have made default
in payment due on the Bond No. 7929 dated 26.11.2009 attested
by Mrs. Ruvini A. S. Dassanayake, Notary Public of Marawila in
favour of the People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the
People’s Bank a sum of Rupees One Million Six Hundred and
Twenty-four Thousand only (Rs. 1,624,000) on the said Bond.
The Board of Directors of People’s Bank under powers vested in
them by the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by
the Act, No. 32 of 1986 do hereby resolve that the property and
premises mortgaged to the said Bank by the said Bond No. 7929
be sold by the Public Auction by Sochkman and Samarawickrama
and Company Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the said sum
of Rupees One Million Six Hundred and Twenty-four Thousand
only (Rs. 1,624,000) and with further interest on Rupees One
Million Six Hundred and Twenty-four Thousand only
(Rs. 1,624,000) at Sixteen per centum (16%) per annum from
27.10.2010 to date of sale and cost and money recoverable under
section 29D of the said People’s Bank Act less payments (if any)
since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY/PROPERTIES
MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot No. 04
depicted in Plan No. 448 surveyed on 03rd day of July, 2000 and made
on 04th day of July, 2000 by Mr. P. A. H. Gunatilaka, Licensed
Surveyor of the Land called “Delgahawatta Watta” situated at the
Village of Sandalankawa” in Pitigal Korale, of Katugampola
Hathpattuwa, in the District of Kurunegala, North Western Province
and which said Lot No. 04 is bounded on:

North by : Land belonging to Joose Appuhami and Land belonging
to Winifreeda;

East by: Land belonging to Eson Subasinghe;
South by: Lot No. 01 depicted in the above Plan;
West by: Lot Nos. 02 and 03 depicted in the above Plan.

Containing in extent of Two Roods (00A., 02R., 00P.) alias Zero
decimal Two Zero Two Two Three Five Hectare (Hect. 0.20235
together with trees, plantations, buildings and everything standing
thereon.

Registered under the title in S 106/227 at the Kuliyapitiya Land
Registry, together with Right of way on 10 feet road in Lot No. 02
depicted in Plan No. 448.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Puttlam.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 79, Marawila Road,
Naththandiya.

11-926

PEOPLE’S    BANK

Resolution under Section 29D of the People’s Bank Act,
No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986

IT is hereby notified that the following resolution was unanimously
passed by the Board of Directors of the People’s Bank under Section
29D of the People’s Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act,
No. 32 of 1986 at their meeting held on 26.02.2010.

Whereas Bope Arachchige Charles Senerath Perera and Bope
Arachchige Sharline Beatrice Perera  have made default in payment
due on the Bond No. 14306 dated 13.02.2009 attested by S. P. L.
Wijesiriwardena, Notary Public of Gampaha in favour of the
People’s Bank and there is now due and owing to the People’s Bank
a sum of Rupees Four Million Seven Hundred and Eighty-seven
Thousand Two Hundred and Thirty-seven and cents Twenty-
eight (Rs. 4,787,237.28) on the said Bond. The Board of Directors
of the People’s Bank under powers vested in them by the People’s
Bank Act, No. 29 of 1961 as amended by the Act, No. 32 of 1986
do hereby resolve that the property and premises mortgaged to the
said Bank by the said Bond No. 14306 be sold by the Public
Auction by Sochkman and Samarawickrema  Licensed Auctioneer
of Colombo for recovery of the said sum of Rupees Four Million
Seven Hundred and Eighty-seven Thousand Two Hundred and
Thirty-seven and cents Twenty-eight (Rs. 4,787,237.28) and with
further interest of Rupees Four Million Seven Hundred and
Eighty-seven Thousand Two Hundred and Thirty-seven and
cents Twenty-eight (Rs. 4,787,237.28) at (24%) per annum from
23.08.2009 to date of sale and coast of sale and money recoverable
under section 29L of the said People’s Bank Act less payments
(if any) since received.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 38
depicted in Plan No. 4173 dated 21.10.2006 made by M. D. Edward,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called Galla Estate situated at Ekala
within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Ja-Ela in Ragam Pattu of
Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha, Western Province and
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bounded on the North by Lot 49, East by Lot 39, South by Lot 42,
West by Lot 37 and containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.)
together with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else
standing thereon and registered under B 231/164 of the Land Registry
of Negombo.

Together with right of way in over and along (road reservation)
depicted in the said Plan.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Regional Manager,
Gampaha.

People’s Bank,
Regional Head Office,
No. 131, Kandy Road,
Belummahara,
Mudungoda.

11-925

HATTON  NATIONAL  BANK  PLC—DELGODA
BRANCH

(Formerly known as Hatton National Bank  Ltd.)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Hatton
National Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of

Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990

Wanniarachchige Chaturanga Vilasana Wanniarachchi and
Wanniachchi Kankanamalage Lakshika Lankani.

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of Hatton National Bank PLC
held on 27th August, 2010 it was resolved specially and unanimously.

“Whereas Wanniarachchige Chaturanga Vilasana Wanniarachchi
and Wanniachchi Kankanamalage Lakshika Lankani as the Obligors
have made default in payment due on Bond No. 24938 dated 11th
May, 2007 and Bond No. 25568 dated 20th December, 2007 both
attested by R. M. A. N. W. Rajakaruna, Notary Public of Gampaha
in favour of Hatton National Bank PLC and there is now due and
owing to the Hatton National Bank PLC as at 30th June, 2010 a
sum of Rupees Seven Hundred and Forty-six Thousand Nine
Hundred and Sixty-four and cents Fifty-three only (Rs. 746,964.53)
on the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Hatton National
Bank PLC under the power vested by the Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve
that the property and premises morefully described in the Schedule,
hereto and mortgaged to Hatton National Bank PLC by the said
Bond Nos. 24938 and 25568 be sold by Public Auction by
P. Muthukumarana, Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for recovery
of the said sum of Rs. 746,964.53 together with further interest
from 01st July, 2010 to date of sale together with costs of
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since
received.

THE SCHEDULE

01. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot “8C”
depicted in Plan No. 5997F dated 27.09.2006 made by L. J. Liyanage,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Kosgahawatta” situated at
Kanduboda Village in the Adikari Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District
of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot “8C” is bounded
on the North by Lot 8D, on the East by Land of Ariyawansa
Edirisinghe, on the South by Lot 8B in Plan No. 5997C and on the West
by Lot 8B in Plan No. 5997C and Pradeshiya Sabha Road and
containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) and together with
the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon.

Which said Lot 8C is a resurvey of the following land:-

 All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot “8C”
depicted in Plan No. 5997D dated 21.03.2003 made by L. J. Liyanage,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Kosgahawatta” situated at
Kanduboda Village in the Adikari Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District
of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot “8C” is bounded
on the North by remaining portion of this land, on the East by Land
of Ariyawansa Edirisinghe, on the South by Lot 8B in Plan No. 5997C,
and on the West by Lot 8B in Plan No. 5997C and Pradeshiya Sabha
Road and containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) and
together with the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else
standing thereon.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot “8D”
depicted in Plan No. 5997F dated 27.09.2006 made by L. J. Liyanage,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Kosgahawatta” situated at
Kanduboda Village in the Adikari Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District
of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot “8D” is bounded
on the North by Land of Saranelis Edirisinghe, on the East by Land
of Ariyawansa Edirisinghe, on the South by Lot 8C, and on the West
by Pradeshiya Sabha Road and containing in extent Ten Perches (0A.,
0R., 10P.) and together with the buildings, trees, plantations and
everything else standing thereon.

Which said Lot 8D is a resurvey of the following land:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot “8D”
depicted in Plan No. 5997E dated 07.03.2005 made by L. J. Liyanage,
Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Kosgahawatta” situated at
Kanduboda Village in the Adikari Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District
of Gampaha, Western Province and which said Lot “8D” is bounded
on the North by Land of S. Edirisinghe, on the East by Land of
Ariyawansa Edirisinghe, on the South by Lot 8C in Plan No. 5997D
of this Land, and on the West by Pradeshiya Sabha Road and
containing in extent Ten Perches (0A., 0R., 10P.) and together with
the buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon.

By order of the Board,

K. A. L. T. RANAWEERA,
AGM (Legal)/Board Secretary.

11-952
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COMMERCIAL   BANK   OF   CEYLON  PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration No. PQ
116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

Loan Account No. : 1011234.
Mohamed Mousook Ahamed Mazhar.

AT a meeting held on 24th August, 2012 the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and unanimously
as follows:-

“Whereas Mohamed Mousook Ahamed Mazhar as the Obligor
has made default in the payment due on Bond No. 1969 dated 04th
November, 2011 attested by G. C. Nandisena, Notary Public of
Kurunegala in favour of Commercial Bank of Ceylon Limited now
known as Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC and there is now due
and owing to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC as at 11th July,
2012 a sum of Rupees Eight Million Three Hundred and Thirty-
four Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty-eight (Rs. 8,334,338)
on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of Commercial Bank
of Ceylon PLC under the powers vested by Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 do hereby resolve
that the property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto and mortgaged to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC by
the said Bond No. 1969  be sold by Public Auction by Mr. I. W.
Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer of No. 369/1, Dutugemunu
Mawatha, Lewella Road, Mawilmada, Kandy for the recovery of
the said sum of Rupees Eight Million Three Hundred and Thirty-
four Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty-eight (Rs. 8,334,338)
with further interest on a sum of Rs. 7,825,100 at 22% per annum
from 12th July, 2012 to date of sale together with Costs of
Advertising and any other charges incurred less payments (if any)
since received.

THE SCHEDULE

 All that allotment of land called Ambalanliyadda alias
Diulgahamulakumbura now Watta depicted as Lot 1 in Plan No. 2850
dated 20th May, 1998 made by S. Wijeratne, Licensed Surveyor
situated at Pilessa Village in Gandahaye Korale of Weudawilli Hatpattu
in the District of Kurunegala North Western Province and bounded
on the North by Paddy land of Dharmasena, on the East by Kurunegala-
Kandy Main Road, on the South by Paddy Field belonging to
Kambikotuwa, Paddy Field of Wedanda and others and land of H. A.
S. Wijesinghe and on the West by live fence separating the Wella and
containing in extent One Rood and Three decimal Five Perches
(0A., 1R., 3.5P.) with the buildings and everything standing thereon
and registered in Volume/Folio A 1398/218 at the Kurunegala Land
Registry.

Mrs. R. R. DUNUWILLE,
Company Secretary.

11-906

COMMERCIAL   BANK   OF   CEYLON  PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (Registration No. PQ
116) under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks

(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

Loan Account Nos. : 572042 and 572059.
Medilon Equipment (Private) Limited.

AT a meeting held on 27th April, 2012 the Board of Directors of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC resolved specially and unanimously
as follows:-

“Whereas Medilon Equipment (Private) Limited a Company
duly incorporated under the Laws of Sri Lanka and having its
Registered Office at No. 268A, Rajagiriya Road, Rajagiriya as the
Obligor and Timothy Michael Sela as the Mortgagor have made
default in the payment due on Bond Nos. 2017 dated 17th
September, 2002, 2650 dated 9th September, 2005, 3294 dated
15th January, 2010 and 3393 dated 06th August, 2010 all attested
by S. N. N. De Silva, Notary Public of Colombo in favour of
Commercial Bank of Ceylon Limited now known as Commercial
Bank of Ceylon PLC (the land morefully described in the 01st
Schedule hereto).

And whereas Medilon Equipment (Private) Limited a Company
duly incorporated under the Laws of Sri Lanka and having its
Registered Office at No. 268A, Rajagiriya Road, Rajagiriya as the
Obligor and Timothy Michael Sela as the Mortgagor have made
default in the payment due on Bond Nos. 483 dated 25th May,
2006 attested by R. A. D. Ranagala, Notary Public of Colombo and
3485 dated 11th April, 2007 attested by J. R. Gamage, Notary
Public of Colombo in favour of Commercial Bank of Ceylon
Limited now known as Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC (the land
morefully described in the 2nd Schedule hereto).

And whereas Medilon Equipment (Private) Limited a Company
duly incorporated under the Laws of Sri Lanka and having its
Registered Office at No. 268A, Rajagiriya Road, Rajagiriya as the
Obligor and Timothy Michael Sela as the Mortgagor have made
default in the payment due on Bond Nos. 3816 dated 25th May,
2006 attested by M. D. P. S. Karunanayake, Notary Public of
Colombo, 3486 dated 11th April, 2007 attested by J. R. Gamage,
Notary Public of Colombo and 3392 dated 06th August, 2010
attested by S. N. N. De Silva, Notary Pubilc of Colombo in favour
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon Limited now known as Commercial
Bank of Ceylon PLC (the land morefully described in the 3rd
Schedule hereto).

and there is now due and owing to the Commercial Bank of
Ceylon PLC as at 28th February, 2012 a sum of Rupees Forty-
seven Million Two Hundred and Eighty-seven Thousand Four
Hundred and Three (Rs. 47,287,403) and the Board of Directors
of Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC under the powers vested by
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of
1990 do hereby resolve that the properties and premises morefully
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described in the 1st, 2nd and 3rd Schedules hereto and mortgaged
to the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC by the said Bond Nos.
2017, 2650, 3294, 3393, 483, 3485, 3816, 3486 and 3392 be sold
by Public Auction by Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer
of No. 369/1, Dutugemunu Mawatha, Lewella Road, Mawilmada,
Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of Rupees Forty-seven
Million Two Hundred and Eighty-seven Thousand Four Hundred
and Three (Rs. 47,287,403) with further interest on a sum of
Rs. 29,145,983 at 15% per annum from 28th February, 2012 to
date of sale together with Costs of Advertising and any other
charges incurred less payments (if any) since received.

THE FIRST SCHEDULE

 All that allotment of land marked Lot 8A depicted in Plan No. 1414
dated 30th November, 1988 made by K. A. Kapugeekiyana, Licensed
Surveyor of the land called Kanattahena (Roxana Estate) together with
buildings, trees, plantations and everything else standing thereon
situated at Walpola in the Palle Pattu of Hewagam Korale in the
Colombo District, Western Province and which said Lot 8A is
bounded on the North by Road, on the East by Lot 7, on the South
by Lot 8B and on the West by Road and containing in extent Fifteen
Perches (0A., 0R., 15.00P.) as per the said Plan No. 1414 and
registered in Volume/Folio G 1154/260 at the Homagama Land
Registry.

Together with the right of way over the land marked Lot 9 depicted
in Plan No. 1624 which is described below.

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 9
(Reservation for Road 15 feet wide) depicted in Plan No. 1624 dated
28th May, 1985 made by N. Wijeweera, Licensed Surveyor of the land
called Kanattahena also known as Roxana Estate situated at Walpola
aforesaid and bounded on the North by Lots 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 of the same
land, on the East by Lots 6, 7, 8 and Kanattahena of Mihindu
Keerthiratne, on the South by Main Road and on the West by Lots
1, 2 and 3 containing in extent Seventeen Perches (0A., 0R., 17P.) as
per the said Plan No. 1624 registered in Volume/Folio G 731/55 at the
Homagama Land Registry.

THE SECOND SCHEDULE

 All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 6A
depicted in Plan No. 1605 dated 16th September, 1999 made by K.
P. Wijeweera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called Kanattahena  also
known as Roxana Estate together with buildings, trees, plantations
and everything else standing thereon situated at Walpola within the
Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Kaduwela in the Palle Pattu of Hewagam
Korale in the District of Colombo Western Province and which said
Lot 6A is bounded on the North by Lots 6G and 6B hereof, on the East
by Delgahawatta claimed by D. G. Vidanagamage, on the South by
Kanattahena claimed by Mihindu Keerathiratne and on the West by
Lot 7 in Plan No. 1624 and Lot 6G hereof and containing in extent
Twelve  decimal Seven Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 12.70P.) as per the
said Plan No. 1605 and registered in Volume/Folio G 1507/203 at the
Homagama Land Registry.

Together with the right of way in over and along the road
reservation described as follows:-

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 6G
(Reservation for Road 15 feet wide) depicted in Plan No. 1605 dated
16th September, 1999 made by K. P. Wijeweera, Licensed Surveyor
of the land called Kanattahena also known as Roxana Estate situated
at Walpola aforesaid and which said Lot 6G is bounded on the North
by Lot 5 in Plan No. 1624, Lots 6E, 6F and 6C hereof, on the East by
Lots 6C, 6B and 6A hereof, on the South by Lots 6B and 6A hereof
and on the West by Lots 7, 9 and 5 in Plan No. 1624 and containing
in extent Seven decimal Two Nought Perches (0A., 0R., 7.20P.) as per
the said Plan No. 1605 and registered under Volume/Folio G 1507/173
at the Homagama Land Registry.

THE THIRD SCHEDULE

 All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 3
depicted in Plan No. 117/1998 dated 18th December, 1998 made by
K. D. W. D. Perera, Licensed Surveyor (being a resurvey and
subdivision from and out of  Lot 1A depicted in Plan No. 1358 dated
31st May, 1969 made by D. A. Mendis, Licensed Surveyor) together
with the partly constructed building and everything else standing
thereon of the land called Mendoragahawatte presently bearing
Assessment No. 268A, Rajagiriya Road situated at Rajagiriya (Ward
A/2) within the Municipal Council Limits of Sri Jayawardenapura
Kotte in the Palle Pattu of Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo
Western Province and which said Lot 3 is bounded on the North by
Lot 2, on the East by premises bearing Assessment No. 7, 2nd Lane,
Meda Welikada Road, on the South by premises bearing Assessment
No. 258, Rajagiriya Road and on the West by Rajagiriya Road and
containing in extent Eight decimal Seven Five Perches
(0A., 0R., 8.75P.) according to the said Plan No. 117/1998 and
registered under Volume/Folio M 2679/92 at the Nugegoda-Delkanda
Land Registry.

Mrs. R. R. DUNUWILLE,
Companay Secretary.
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NATIONAL  DEVELOPMENT  BANK  PLC

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors under
Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special

Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 as amended

AT a meeting of the Board of Directors of the National Development
Bank PLC held on 21st September, 2012 the following resolution was
specially and unanimously adopted.

“Whereas  NCDT and Associates (Private) Ltd Company duly
incorporated under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 and having
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its registered office at Ittapana (Borrower) has made default in the
payment due on Bond No. 278 dated 24.11.2011 attested by (Ms)
P. L. J. R. D. Cooray, Notary Public in favour of National
Development Bank PLC (Bank) and whereas Jayasin Achchige
Nirosha Namali Perera Gunawardena being the freehold owner of
the property and premises described below and being a Director
and having considerable interest of the Borrower has mortgaged her
freehold right title and interest to the Bank under the said Bond.
And whereas a sum of Seven Million Eight Hundred and Twelve
Thousand Five Hundred and Sixty-six Rupees and Eighty-two
cents (Rs. 7,812,566.82) has become due and owing on the said
Bond to the Bank as at 31st July, 2012.

The Board of Directors of the Bank acting under the powers
vested in them under the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 (Principal Act) as amended do
hereby resolve that the property and premises including the
Freehold and other right title and interest to the property and
premises described below mortgaged to the Bank by the said Bond
be sold by public auction by Mr. P. K. E. Senapathy, Licensed
Auctioneer for the recovery of the said sum of Seven Million Eight
Hundred and Twelve Thousand Five Hundred and Sixty-six
Rupees and Eighty-two cents (Rs. 7,812,566.82) or any portion
thereof  remaining unpaid at the time of sale and interest on a
Principal sum of Four Million Five Hundred and Twenty-eight
Thousand Fourteen Rupees and Thirty-eight cents
(Rs. 4,528,014.38) due on the said Bond at the rate of Average
Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPLR) plus Seven decimal
Nought One (7.01%) per annum which will be adjusted every three
months and the rate applicable for the first interest period until
January, 2012 shall be 16.5% per annum and on a Principal sum
of Two Million Two Hundred and Seventy Thousand Seven
Hundred and Ninety-five Rupees and Seven cents (Rs.
2,270,795.07) due on the said Bond at the rate of Average Weighted
Prime Lending Rate (AWPLR) plus Five decimal Five One
(5.51%) per annum which will be adjusted every three months and
the rate applicable for the first interest period until January, 2012
shall be 15% per annum all from 1st day of August, 2012 to the
date of sale together with costs of advertising selling and other
charges incurred in terms of Section 13 of the Pricipal Act less any
payments (if any) since received.”

DESCRIPTION OF THE MORTGAGED PROPERTY

 All that divided and defined allotment of Land marked Lot 380
depicted in Sheet 14, Division No. 04 Cadastral Plan No. 510071 dated
06.06.2009 made by J. M. Wijewardena, Registered Licensed Surveyor
and certified by Senior Superintendent of Survey (Gampaha) on
21.08.2009 of the land called Galmukalana and Galmukalana Watta
alias Zelting Estate situated at Kadawala (in 96B Kadawala South
Gramasewa Division Divulapitiya Divisional Secretariat) in Dungaha
Pattu of Aluthkuru Korale in the District of Gampaha Western
Province and bounded on the North by Road from Negombo to
Divulapitiya, East by Lots 379, 381 and Pradeshiya Sabha Road,
South by Lot 137 and on the West by Lot 137 and containing in extent
One Acre Two Roods and Thirty-eight decimal Eight One Perches

(1A., 2R., 38.81P.) or 0.70519 Hectares and registered under E 1063/
118 at the Negombo Land Registry. Together with all and singular the
immovable plant machinery equipment fixtures fittings and services
attached to the land and premises and buildings above described
including but not being limited to the Electricity system,
Telecommunication system and Water Supply system.

Director/Chief Executive  Officer,
National Development Bank PLC.

11-861

THE    DFCC  BANK

Notice of Resolution passed by the DFCC Bank under
Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special

Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

IN terms of Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special
Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 it is hereby notified that the following
Resolution was unanimously passed on the 29th August, 2012 by the
Board of Directors of DFCC Bank.

BOARD RESOLUTION

WHEREAS Continental Sweaters (Private) Limited a Company duly
incorporated in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka under
the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Company’) and having its Registered Office at No. 79/3, 5th Lane,
Colombo 03 has made default in payments due on Mortgage Bond
Nos. 1930 dated 17th April, 2007 attested by S. M. Gunaratne,
Notary Public of Colombo, 216 and 217 both dated 15th October,
2007 attested by K. D. A. V. Wijekoon, Notary Public of Colombo
in favour of the DFCC Bank.

And Whereas there is as at 31st January, 2012 due and owing
from the said Continental Sweaters (Private) Limited to the DFCC
Bank a sum of Rupees Twenty-three Million Three Hundred and
Ninety-seven Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirty-three and
cents Twenty-nine (Rs. 23,397,833.29) together with interest
thereon from 01st February, 2012 to the date of sale on sum of
Rupees Three Million Nine Hundred and Twenty Thousand
(Rs. 3,920,000.00) at the rate of Seven per centum (7%) per annum
above the Twelve Week Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate
(AWPR) rounded upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum which
will be revised every three months on the first business day of
January, April, July and October each year and further interest on
a sum of Rupees Nine Million Three Hundred and Thirty-three
Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty-two (Rs. 9,333,332.00) at
the rate of Nine per centum (9%) per annum above the Twelve
Week Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded
upwards to the nearest 0.5% per annum which will be revised every
three months on the first business day of January, April, July and
October each year.
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And whereas the Board of Directors of the DFCC Bank under
the powers vested in them by the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 and the Development
Finance Corporation of Ceylon Act, No. 35 of 1955 as subsequently
amended, do hereby resolve that the vehicle, land premises and
machinery together with everything else thereon described below
mortgaged to DFCC Bank by the aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos.
1930, 216 and 217 by Continental Sweaters (Private) Limited be
sold by Public Auction by M/S Schokman and Samerawickreme,
Licensed Auctioneer of Colombo for the recovery of the said sum
of Rupees Twenty-three Million Three Hundred and Ninety-
seven Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirty-three and cents Twenty-
nine (Rs. 23,397,833.29) together with interest thereon from 01st
February, 2012 to the date of sale on sum of Rupees Three Million
Nine Hundred and Twenty Thousand (Rs. 3,920,000.00) at the
rate of Seven per centum (7%) per annum above the Twelve Week
Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards
to the nearest 0.5% per annum which will be revised every three
months on the first business day of January, April, July and
October each year and further interest on a sum of Rupees Nine
Million Three Hundred and Thirty-three Thousand Three Hundred
and Thirty-two (Rs. 9,333,332.00) at the rate of Nine per centum
(9%) per annum above the Twelve Week Average Weighted Prime
Lending Rate (AWPR) rounded upwards to the nearest 0.5% per
annum which will be revised every three months on the first
business day of January, April, July and October each year or any
portion thereof remaining unpaid at the time of sale together with
the cost of advertising and selling the said land and premises and
everything else standing thereon and all monies expended and costs
and other charges incurred by the DFCC Bank in accordance with
the covenants of the aforesaid Mortgage Bond Nos. 1930, 216 and
217 in terms of Section 13 of the Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990.

DESCRIPTION OF THE VEHICLE MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND No. 1930

Distinctive Description, Chassis Engine Place where
Number Make, Number Number kept

Model,
Horse power

etc.

WP KG Suzuki JSAJTD54 J20A- Continental
-9977 Grand V00223677 410722 Sweaters

Vitara (Private)
Station Limited,
Wagon 79/3, 5th

Lane,
Colombo 03.

Together with all accessories and tools appertaining thereto.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND No. 216

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 4
depicted in Plan No. PP 5742 (National Map Reference 54/8, and Field
Book EDM Maha 2389) dated 24th August, 2005 made by J. P. K.

Weerakoon, Licensed Surveyor situated at Medasiyapattuwa in
Doranegama Village in the Divisional Secretariat Division of
Harispattuwa in the District of Kandy, Central Province and which
said Lot 4 is bounded on the North by Lots 1, 2 and 3, on the East by
Lot 3 and Illandewatta alias Egodawatta and Amuhena, on the South
by Amuhena, Thembiliwatta and Godapolawatta and on the West by
Godapolawatta and Lot 1 and containing in extent One decimal Two
One Four Eight (1.2148) Hectares and registered at the Land Registry
Kandy.

DESCRIPTION OF THE MACHINERY MORTGAGED BY
MORTGAGE BOND No. 217

The entirely of the movable plant machinery and equipment
including-

Description No. of
Machines

1. Denyo Sound Proof Generator 1
2. Diesel Fired Boiler 1
3. Centrifugal Hydro Extractor 1
4. Industrial Washing Machine 1
5. Raytheon Commercial Laundry Complete

with Tumbler Steam Dryer 2
6. Juki Sewing Machines 6
7. Pegasus, Siruba Over Lock Machines 4
8. Flying Tiger Hand Driven Flat Knitting Machines (3G) 32
9. Wild Horse Hand Driven Flat Knitting Machines (5G) 100

10. Flying Tiger Hand Driven Flat Knitting Machines (5G) 52
11. Wild Horse Hand Driven Flat Knitting Machines (7G) 40
12. Flying Tiger Hand Driven Flat Knitting Machines (7G) 163
13. Flying Tiger Hand Driven Flat Knitting Machines (12G) 11
14. Flying Tiger Dial Linking Machine (6G) 15
15. Wild Horse Dial Linking Machine (8G) 36
16. Wild Horse Dial Linking Machine (10G) 4
17. Wild Horse Dial Linking Machine (12G) 1
18. Semi Automatic Knitting Machine 6

Together with spares accessories and tools now lying in and upon
premises at Continental Sweaters (Private) Limited at Doranegama,
Harispattuwa in the District of Kandy and in and upon any other
godowns stores and premises at which the company now is and may
at any time and from time to time hereafter be carrying on business
or in or upon which the said movable plant machinery and equipment
may from time to time be stored kept or lie and also the entirely of the
movable plant machinery and equipment whatsoever which shall or
may from time to time replace the said movable plant machinery and
equipment spares accessories and tools which shall or may from time
to time at all times hereafter be brought into kept or lie in and upon
the aforesaid godowns stores and premises and all or any other place
or places of business into which the company may at any time and
from time to time hereafter remove or carry on its business or trade
or store or keep the said movable plant machinery equipment spares
accessories and tools.

A. N. FONSEKA,
General Manger.

DFCC Bank,
No. 73/5, Galle Road,
Colombo 3.

11-938

PRINTED  AT  THE  DEPARTMENT  OF  GOVERNMENT  PRINTING,  SRI  LANKA.


